
Board of Directors 
San Simeon Community Services District 

 
                               

 

                                               
 

 
BOARD PACKET 

 
Wednesday, August 12, 2020 

Regular Meeting 3:00 pm  
 

Virtual Board Meeting via Zoom 
Meeting Room: 927-053-7206 

Password: 114376 
 
 

 
 

                                                                                             Prepared by: 
 

 



Board Meeting Brown Act Check Sheet

Does the agenda have the correct:
Meeting location
Meeting time

Is the agenda posted 72 hours prior to the Regular meeting
Posting 1 District Office
Posting 2 Corner Store 
Posting 3 Chamber of Commerce

Is the agenda on the website 72 hours prior to the Regular meeting
Has the Board Packet been distributed to the Board
At the time of Packet Distribution to the Board has the Packet Been: 

Distributed to the individuals / entities on the Distribution List
Loaded on the Website

Budget Committee Meeting
Does the agenda have the correct:

Meeting location
Meeting time

Is the agenda posted 72 hours prior to the Regular meeting
Posting 1 District Office
Posting 2 Corner Store 
Posting 3 Chamber of Commerce

Water Committee Meeting
Does the agenda have the correct:

Meeting location
Meeting time

Is the agenda posted 72 hours prior to the Regular meeting
Posting 1 District Office
Posting 2 Corner Store 
Posting 3 Chamber of Commerce



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



 
 

SSCSD Board Agenda      Page 1 of 3 
 

AGENDA 
SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 
Wednesday, August 12, 2020 

3:00 pm 
 
Pursuant to Governor Gavin Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20 dated March 17, 2020 and the San 
Luis Obispo County Local Emergency Order and Regulation regarding COVID-19 dated March 18, 
2020, this meeting shall occur as a virtual teleconference using the Zoom app. Members of the public 
cannot physically attend this meeting.  
 

Internet Meeting Location 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/9270537206?pwd=RDNNcTErb2E1TmswRG51WGNEZVJLQT09 
 
Meeting ID: 927 053 7206 
Password: 114376 
 
One tap mobile 
+1 669 900 9128, 9270537206# US (San Jose) 
+1 346 248 7799, 9270537206# US (Houston) 
 
Time: Aug 12, 2020 03:00 PM Pacific Time  

NOTE:  On the day of the meeting, the virtual meeting room will be open beginning at 2:30 PM. If you 
are unable to access the meeting please contact the District office at (805) 927-4778 prior to the 3:00 
PM meeting start time and staff can assist you in accessing the meeting. Should you have any 
questions related to the information on this agenda or if you wish to submit public comment in the 
written format you can email Cortney Murguia at admin@sansimeoncsd.org.  Members of the public 
can also contact the District office at (805) 927-4778 with any questions or concerns related to this 
agenda or accessing the meeting.   

1. REGULAR SESSION: 3:00 PM  
A. Roll Call 

 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: 

Public Comment - Any member of the public may address the Board relating to any matter within the 
Board’s jurisdiction, provided the matter is not on the Board’s agenda.  Presentations are limited to 
three (3) minutes or less with additional time at the discretion of the Chair. Your comments should be 
directed to the Board as a whole and not directed to individual Board members. The Brown Act restricts 
the Board from taking formal action on matters not published on the agenda. 

 
3. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS AND REPORTS:   

 
A. STAFF REPORTS:  
  i. Sheriff’s Report – Report for July. 

mailto:admin@sansimeoncsd.org


 
 

SSCSD Board Agenda      Page 2 of 3 
 

  ii. Superintendent’s Report – Summary of July activities. 
  iii. General Manager’s Report – Summary of July Activities. 
  iv. District Financial Summary – Summary of Monthly Financials.  

v. District Counsel’s Report – Summary of July Activities.    
 
B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS:  
                  
C.  SPECIAL PRESENTATION:  

 
D. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS AND REPORTS: 
Public Comment - This public comment period provides an opportunity for members of the public to 
address the Board on matters discussed during Agenda Item #3 – Special Presentations and Reports.  
If a member of the public wishes to speak at this time, Public Comment is limited to three (3) minutes.  

  
4. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS: 

Public Comment - Members of the public wishing to speak on consent agenda items may do so 
when recognized by the Presiding Officer.  If a member of the public wishes to speak at this 
time, Public Comment is limited to three (3) minutes.  

 
A. Review and approval of Minutes for the Regular Meeting on July 8, 2020.  

 
B. Review and approval of Minutes for the Special Meeting on July 31, 2020.  

 
C. Review and approval of Disbursements Journal.  
 
D. Review and approval of updates to the Policy and Procedures Manual.  

 
5. BUSINESS ACTION ITEMS: 

Public Comment – Public comment will be allowed for each individual business item. Members of 
the public wishing to speak on business items may do so when recognized by the Presiding Officer. If a 
member of the public wishes to speak at this time, Public Comment is limited to three (3) minutes per 
person for each business item. 
 
A. Review of authorization of powers to the General Manager awarded under Resolution 20-419. 

 
B. Adoption of Resolution 20-424 approving the Fiscal Year Budget for 2020/2021.  

 
C. Discussion related to the LAFCO solid waste authority powers related to District Resolution 

20-425. 
 

D. Discussion and review of resumes for the on call engineering services for the District Office.  
 

6. BOARD/STAFF GENERAL DISCUSSIONS AND PROPOSED AGENDA ITEMS – Requests from 
Board members to Staff to receive feedback, prepare information, and/or place an item on a future 
agenda(s). 
 



 
 

SSCSD Board Agenda      Page 3 of 3 
 

7. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of Section 
54956.9: (Number of cases:1) 

 
8. ADJOURNMENT   

All staff reports or other written documentation, including any supplemental material distributed to a 
majority of the Board within 72 hours of a regular meeting, relating to each item of business on the 
agenda are available for public inspection during regular business hours in the District office, 111 Pico 
Avenue, San Simeon. If requested, this agenda shall be made available in appropriate alternative 
formats to persons with a disability, as required by the Americans with Disabilities Act. To make a 
request for a disability-related modification or accommodation, contact the District Administrator at 805-
927-4778 as soon as possible and at least 48 hours prior to the meeting date. This agenda was 
prepared and posted pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2.  



 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

3. A. ii. SUPERINTENDENT REPORT 
Jerry Copeland 

   Facilities Update for July 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                                                                                    SUPERINTENDENTS REPORT  PG 1 
 

 SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT  

Item 3.A.ii       Prepared by: Jerry Copeland 

 
 

1. Wastewater Treatment Plant 
• All sampling, testing and reporting at the Wastewater Treatment Plant was 

performed as required by the RWQCB. 
• The Equalization Basin was cleaned and the air distribution system was 

replaced. 
• Two loads of sludge were hauled away. 

 

2. Water Treatment and Distribution System 
• All routine sampling and testing was performed. The monthly report was 

submitted to the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB), Division of 
Drinking Water (DDW).  

• Routine maintenance was performed on the R.O. unit. 
• Annual Valve Exercising was completed. 
• Monthly water meter reading was performed. 

 
 

3. District and Equipment Maintenance 
• Staff continues with all of the scheduled preventive maintenance for all the 

equipment at the facilities. We are recording all these activities. 



 MONTHLY DATA REPORT

Date Day

Wastewater 
Influent Daily 

Flow

Wastewater 
Effluent Daily 

Flow

 Well 1 
Total Daily 
Produced

Well 2   
Total Daily 
Produced

Total Daily 
Water 

Produced

R.O. Daily 
Influent 

Flow

R.O. Daily 
Effluent 

Flow
R.O. Daily 
Brine Flow

Distribution 
Chloride

Recycled 
Water 

Distributed

Water 
Level Well 

1

Water 
Level 
Well 2

Rainfall in 
Inches State Flows

07/01/20 Wednesday 64,635 72,990 69,040 1,122 70,162 0 0 0 - - - 0 9.8 9.7 0.00 1,382
07/02/20 Thursday 74,295 65,070 100,681 0 100,681 0 0 0 - - - 0 9.7 9.6 0.00 1,681
07/03/20 Friday 70,625 72,830 95,968 0 95,968 0 0 0 - - - 0 - - 0.00 3,447
07/04/20 Saturday 93,623 94,810 115,491 0 115,491 0 0 0 - - - 0 - - 0.00 2,757
07/05/20 Sunday 85,961 77,050 74,875 0 74,875 0 0 0 - - - 0 9.7 9.6 0.00 3,045
07/06/20 Monday 82,730 75,580 67,769 0 67,769 0 0 0 - - - 0 9.6 9.4 0.00 3,366
07/07/20 Tuesday 60,453 66,280 68,367 0 68,367 0 0 0 - - - 0 9.6 9.4 0.00 1,970
07/08/20 Wednesday 51,921 50,420 72,406 823 73,229 0 0 0 - - - 0 9.6 9.5 0.00 1,955
07/09/20 Thursday 60,814 58,750 73,454 0 73,454 0 0 0 - - - 0 9.6 9.5 0.00 2,497
07/10/20 Friday 80,812 77,960 76,296 0 76,296 4,338 2,751 1,587 - - - 0 9.7 9.5 0.00 1,949
07/11/20 Saturday 98,676 94,170 147,655 0 147,655 0 0 0 - - - 0 - - 0.00 2,266
07/12/20 Sunday 80,282 83,900 84,225 0 84,225 0 0 0 - - - 0 - - 0.00 3,711
07/13/20 Monday 76,619 71,690 69,040 0 69,040 0 0 0 - - - 0 10.1 9.9 0.00 2,968
07/14/20 Tuesday 103,848 99,800 72,780 0 72,780 0 0 0 - - - 0 10.0 9.8 0.00 1,955
07/15/20 Wednesday 83,322 84,370 823 73,678 74,501 0 0 0 - - - 0 10.0 9.8 0.00 2,154
07/16/20 Thursday 54,905 57,750 66,796 0 66,796 0 0 0 - - - 0 10.0 9.8 0.00 3,093
07/17/20 Friday 72,938 70,100 0 2,992 2,992 0 0 0 - - - 0 10.0 9.8 0.00 2,459
07/18/20 Saturday 48,837 49,460 225,298 0 225,298 0 0 0 - - - 0 10.0 9.8 0.00 2,848
07/19/20 Sunday 86,133 89,290 72,556 0 72,556 0 0 0 - - - 0 10.3 10.1 0.00 3,356
07/20/20 Monday 66,324 60,930 68,966 0 68,966 0 0 0 - - - 0 10.0 9.8 0.00 2,539
07/21/20 Tuesday 62,352 67,240 70,387 972 71,359 0 0 0 - - - 0 10.0 9.9 0.00 2,538
07/22/20 Wednesday 58,256 62,250 66,946 0 66,946 0 0 0 - - - 0 10.0 9.9 0.00 2,199
07/23/20 Thursday 77,518 75,850 73,828 0 73,828 0 0 0 - - - 0 10.0 9.8 0.00 2,238
07/24/20 Friday 84,507 81,030 127,010 0 127,010 0 0 0 - - - 0 - - 0.00 1,813
07/25/20 Saturday 116,878 100,720 107,637 0 107,637 0 0 0 - - - 0 - - 0.00 2,446
07/26/20 Sunday 84,565 83,680 74,800 0 74,800 0 0 0 - - - 0 10.1 10.0 0.00 3,248
07/27/20 Monday 72,629 70,680 70,761 0 70,761 0 0 0 - - - 0 10.1 9.9 0.00 2,844
07/28/20 Tuesday 51,357 65,450 69,265 0 69,265 0 0 0 - - - 0 10.1 10.0 0.00 1,863
07/29/20 Wednesday 70,900 72,790 97,988 1,047 99,035 0 0 0 - - - 0 10.1 9.9 0.00 1,919
07/30/20 Thursday 75,258 67,190 65,974 0 65,974 0 0 0 - - - 0 10.1 9.9 0.00 1,317
07/31/20 Friday 89,137 84,900 145,785 0 145,785 0 0 0 - - - 0 10.1 9.9 0.00 4,986
TOTALS 2,341,110 2,304,980 2,592,867 80,634 2,673,502 4,338 2,751 1,587 0 0.00 78,809
Average 75,520 74,354 83,641 2,601 86,242 140 89 51 0 0 0 0 9.9 9.8 0.00 2,542
Minimum 48,837 49,460 0 0 2,992 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9.6 9.4 0.00 1,317
Maximum 116,878 100,720 225,298 73,678 225,298 4,338 2,751 1,587 0 0 0 0 10.3 10.1 0.00 4,986

Page 2

San Simeon Community Services District                         Superintendent's Report                                                       July 2020 

Chloride Wells  
1        2



DATA SUMMARY SHEET

2020
Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Total for 2020

Wastewater Influent 2,215,755 1,971,958 1,944,913 1,583,618 1,850,716 2,266,319 2,341,110 14,174,389
Wastewater Final Effluent (Month Cycle) 2,168,690 1,922,920 1,846,450 1,555,350 1,707,500 2,045,070 2,304,980 13,550,960
Adjusted Wastewater Influent (- State Flow) 1,958,507 1,780,122 1,818,999 1,500,460 1,748,006 2,201,429 2,262,301 13,269,824
Water Produced (month cycle) 1,843,670 1,872,693 1,514,688 1,215,724 1,962,303 2,261,129 2,673,502 13,343,710
Sewer Influent/Water Produced Ratio 1.20 1.05 1.28 1.31 0.94 1.00 0.88 N/A
Adusted Sewer/Water Produced Ratio 0.94 0.95 1.20 1.24 0.89 0.91 0.85 N/A
Well 1 Water Production 1,841,426 403,172 3,665 5,685 5,535 1,653,903 2,592,867 6,506,253
Well 2 Water Production 2,244 1,469,521 1,511,023 1,210,040 1,956,768 607,226 80,634 6,837,456
Total Well Production 1,843,670 1,872,693 1,514,688 1,215,724 1,962,303 2,261,129 2,673,502 13,343,710
Water Well 1 Avg Depth to Water 10.3 10.1 10.0 10.0 10.4 10.2 9.9 N/A
Water Well 2 Avg Depth to Water 10.2 10.0 9.9 9.9 10.3 10.1 9.8 N/A
Average Depth to Water of Both Wells 10.3 10.1 10.0 10.0 10.4 10.2 9.9 N/A
Change in Average Depth to Water from 2019 +1.0 +1.1 +0.7 -0.2 +0.2 +0.1 +0.1 N/A
Average Chloride mg/L at the Wells 32 32 32 - - - - N/A
State Wastewater Treated 257,248 191,836 125,914 83,158 102,710 64,890 78,809 904,565
State % of Total WW Flow 12% 10% 7% 5% 6% 3% 3% N/A
Recycled Water Sold (Gallons) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Biosolids Removal (Gallons) 4,500 9,000 9,000 0 4,500 4,500 9,000 40,500
WW Permit Limitation Exceeded 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
RW Permit Limitation Exceeded 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Constituent Exceeded None None None None None None None N/A
Sample Limit N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Sample Result    N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

2019
Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Total for 2019

Wastewater Influent 2,974,678 2,978,722 3,279,598 2,517,042 2,622,942 2,407,688 2,798,408 2,948,183 2,466,442 2,409,305 2,067,815 2,722,375 32,193,198
Wastewater Final Effluent (Month Cycle) 2,921,320 2,950,740 3,186,710 2,456,140 2,464,900 2,553,710 3,022,860 2,737,320 2,323,010 2,323,340 1,984,940 2,611,160 31,536,150
Adjusted Wastewater Influent( - State Flow) * 2,599,672 2,540,371 2,840,773 2,267,805 2,227,432 2,089,028 2,339,678 2,543,256 2,152,297 2,116,543 1,802,882 2,355,957 27,875,694
Water Produced (month cycle) 1,849,654 1,643,730 2,013,823 2,212,060 2,175,858 2,456,058 2,832,302 2,609,472 2,373,404 2,390,682 2,001,947 1,865,437 26,424,428
Sewer Influent/Water Produced Ratio 1.61 1.81 1.63 1.14 1.24 0.98 1.09 1.13 1.04 1.01 1.03 1.46 N/A
Adusted Sewer/Water Ratio 1.41 1.55 1.41 1.03 1.06 0.85 0.91 0.98 0.91 0.86 0.90 1.26 N/A
Average Depth of Both Wells 9.3 9.0 9.3 10.2 10.2 10.3 10.0 10.3 10.7 11.7 12.2 10.4 N/A
Change in Average Depth to Water from 2018 -1.5 -1.3 -0.4 -0.1 -0.2 +0.2 -0.4 -0.8 -1.3 -0.7 -0.6 +0.5 N/A
Average Chloride mg/L at the Wells 55 44 44 46 46 38 38 38 38 32 32 32 N/A
State Wastewater Treated 375,006 438,351 438,825 294,237 395,510 318,660 458,730 404,927 314,145 292,762 264,933 366,418 4,362,504
State % of Total WW Flow 13% 15% 13% 12% 15% 13% 16% 14% 13% 12% 13% 14% N/A
Recycled Water Sold (Gallons) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Biosolids Removal (Gallons) 4,500 0 9,000 9,000 4,500 9,000 9,000 4,500 4,500 4,500 0 4,500 63,000
WW Permit Limitation Exceeded 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N/A
RW Permit Limitation Exceeded 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N/A
Constituent Exceeded None None None None None None None None None None None None N/A
Sample Limit N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Sample Result    N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Page 3

San Simeon Community Services District                                                    Superintendent's Report                                                                  July 2020



San Simeon Community Services District              Superintendent's Report               July 2020 
Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Well Average Depth 2016 10.0 10.6 10.0 10.6 10.6 10.7 11.1 11.9 12.9 13.6 12.7 10.6
Well Average Depth 2017 8.1 8.0 10.0 10.0 9.9 9.7 10.1 10.4 10.5 11.0 11.8 11.8
Well Average Depth 2018 10.8 10.3 9.7 10.3 10.4 10.1 10.4 11.0 11.9 12.4 12.8 9.9
Well Average Depth 2019 9.3 9.0 9.3 10.2 10.2 10.3 10.0 10.3 10.7 11.7 12.2 10.4
Well Average Depth 2020 10.3 10.1 10.0 10.0 10.4 10.2 9.9

page 4

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

10.0

11.0

12.0

13.0

14.0

Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Well Average Depth 2016

Well Average Depth 2017

Well Average Depth 2018

Well Average Depth 2019

Well Average Depth 2020



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. A. iii GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
Charles Grace 

Update for July 2020 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1 
 

         GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

Item 3.A.iii        

Staff Activity – Report on Staff activities for the month of July 2020.  Regular activities 
performed by District staff include:  

Processing of utility payments, customer service duties, answering phone calls, mailing 
of the regular monthly utility bills. Prepared and distributed the agenda and Board 
packet.  
 

Staff also attended to the following items:  

 Responded to nine (9) public records requests. 
 Prepared the meeting agenda and corresponding documents for the July 31, 

2020 Special Board meeting.  
 Continued assisting members of the community with questions related to the MHI 

survey.  
 Manually waived late fees on forty-one (41) customer accounts for a total credit 

amount of $5,890.67.  
 Entered the new billing rates into RVS (Billing Program) and ran test bills to verify 

accuracy.  
 Mailed a monthly newsletter.  

________________________________________________________________ 
 

Update on District Grants: 

 
Prop. 1 Grant:  Entering final award process.  Attended a conference call with the State 
Water Board and County to discuss information needs, including receipt of the District’s 
Audited Financial Statement, discussion of any changes to budget or project schedule 
(needed by 8/3/20), preparation of an Environmental Information Form (EIF) and a new 
Resolution requested by the County (RESO template to be supplied by the County for 
District adoption). (Grant relates to the water storage project) 

NFWF Grant:  SSCSD submitted a final grant agreement signature page to 
NFWF.  Additional information needed, including the NFWF sub recipient FFATA form, 
and NFWF Vendor Setup Form.  Forms have been submitted to SSCSD for completion. 
(Grant relates to the Coastal Development Permit (CDP) for moving the waste 
water treatment plant (WWTP)).  
  
Coastal Commission LCP Amendment Grant:  Continued communication with 
County staff (County is the actual grant holder) re: accounting and initial invoicing.  No 
invoices submitted yet.  Working with the County to set up an accounting report process 



2 
 

for the grant.  Provided CCC staff with an update on the progress of the project 
(CHRP).   
  
OPC Grant:  Continued coordination with Wood re: submittal of the final work plan, 
budget and schedule (draft documents already reviewed by OPC).  OEC is working with 
SSCSD on reviewing Wood’s final version, more edits needed.  Continued 
communications with Wood re: nature of the project (CHRP) for submittal to 
OPC. (Grant relates to the Coastal Development Permit (CDP) for moving the 
waste water treatment plant (WWTP)). 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Update on District Projects:  

Disadvantaged Community Survey (MHI) – SUSP continues to receive responses to 
the survey requests that were July 1, 2020. Staff will continue to work with SUSP and 
provide progress updates to the Board.  

Request for Proposal (RFP) for CEQA – Pending on-call engineer support 
 
Water Tank Project Update – Tank design is approximately 30% complete.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

3. A. iv. DISTRICT FINANCIALS 
Cortney Murguia 

July 31, 2020 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 



June Billing Revenue 81,877.72$        
July Billing Revenue 93,040.11$        

Past Due (60+ days) 14,289.85$        

ENDING BANK BALANCES

PACIFIC PREMIER BANK:
Money Market Account Closing Balance June 30, 2020 1,166,487.88$   
Interest for July     *1.2170 to .2000 % July 901.88$             

Money Market Account Closing Balance July 31, 2020 1,167,389.76$   

Reserve Fund (250,000.00)       
Wait-list Deposits      (69,750.00)         
Customer Deposits    (9,300.00)           
Available Funds 838,339.76$      

General Checking Account July 31, 2020 78,552.99$        

LAIF Closing Balance July 31, 2020 557.83$             
 

Interest Money Market Account 2019 22,529.11$        
*Interest Money Market Account 2020 11,237.37$        

July 31, 2020

SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

        3.A.iv FINANCIAL SUMMARY

July 31, 2020
Billing



 SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
 Balance Sheet
 As of July 31, 2020

Jul 31, 20

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

1010 · Petty cash 150.00

1015 · Pacific Prem - General Checking 76,902.99

1017 · Pacific Premier-Money Market 1,167,389.76

1040 · Cash in county treasury 108.33

1050 · LAIF - non-restricted cash 555.80

Total Checking/Savings 1,245,106.88

Other Current Assets

1200 · Accounts receivable 138,121.30

1220 · A/R - Hearst Castle 7,016.19

1300 · Prepaid expenses 11,879.40

Total Other Current Assets 157,016.89

Total Current Assets 1,402,123.77

Fixed Assets

1400 · Fixed assets

1420 · Building and structures 395,874.73

1500 · Equipment 316,747.53

1540 · Major Water Projects 190,360.90

1560 · Pipe bridge 28,075.58

1580 · Sewer plant 1,488,555.08

1600 · Water system 550,390.00

1620 · WWTP expansion 299,565.92

1630 · Tertiary Project 262,932.67

1640 · Wellhead  Rehab Project 450,827.53

1650 · Walkway access projects 21,511.00

1660 · RO Unit 931,966.97

1670 · Reservoir / Water Tanks 229,630.68

1680 · Generator 29,101.14

Total 1400 · Fixed assets 5,195,539.73

1690 · Accumulated depreciation (2,548,630.93)

Total Fixed Assets 2,646,908.80

TOTAL ASSETS 4,049,032.57

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

2500 · Customer security deposits 9,165.50

2510 · Connect hookup wait list 70,890.00

2520 · USDA Loan 443,122.00

Total Current Liabilities 523,177.50

Total Liabilities 523,177.50

Equity

3200 · Fund balance 3,510,532.36

3900 · Suspense 1,797.05

Net Income 13,525.66

Total Equity 3,525,855.07

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 4,049,032.57

 Page 1 of 1



Jul-20 Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan-21 Feb Mar Apr. May June Totals
State Billing $0.00
Property Tax $2,336.92 $2,336.92
Water $40,209.97 $40,209.97
Sewer $45,546.00 $45,546.00
Service $7,830.48 $7,830.48
Recycled Water $0.00
Late Fees $5,344.33 $5,344.33
Grant Funds $0.00 $0.00

Total $101,267.70 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $101,267.70
Water Sold Cu Ft 292033 292033
Water Sold Acre ft 6.70 6.70

Jul-20 Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan-21 Feb Mar Apr. May June Totals
Revenue $101,267.70 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $101,267.70
Expenses $87,144.37 $87,144.37
Balance $14,123.33 $14,123.33

DISTRICT REVENUE FY 2019/2020

REVENUE VS EXPENSES

$7,000.00

$27,000.00

$47,000.00

$67,000.00

$87,000.00

$107,000.00

Jul‐20 Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan‐21 Feb Mar Apr. May June

State Billing Property Tax Water Sewer Service Recycled Water Late Fees Grant Funds Total

$0.00 $20,000.00 $40,000.00 $60,000.00 $80,000.00 $100,000.00 $120,000.00

Jul‐20
Sep
Nov

Jan‐21

Mar
May

Totals

Expenses

Revenue



SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES
HISTORICAL FISCAL REVIEW

Month Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Fiscal Total
State Billing $24,606.31 $21,914.14 $21,542.66 $23,690.87 $91,753.98
Property Tax $1,282.43 $121.78 $3,983.38 $11,222.22 $31,099.09 $7,506.90 $2,750.02 $640.94 $22,168.20 $1,686.05 $771.97 $83,232.98
Water $34,880.43 $36,192.33 $31,137.52 $27,999.25 $26,930.07 $19,762.53 $22,551.64 $25,457.70 $16,741.07 $28,408.76 $27,795.23 $36,075.95 $333,932.48
Sewer $38,495.46 $39,770.86 $33,836.96 $30,919.58 $29,421.68 $21,164.32 $25,021.12 $28,652.26 $19,108.33 $32,900.73 $31,492.38 $40,773.70 $371,557.38
Service $6,820.12 $6,950.95 $6,821.63 $6,659.98 $6,886.29 $6,886.29 $6,789.30 $6,853.96 $6,724.64 $6,724.64 $6,724.64 $6,724.64 $81,567.08
Late Fees $628.24 $379.06 $292.61 $241.85 $221.14 $159.01 $113.69 $197.92 $487.09 $284.43 $202.63 $179.47 $3,387.14
Grant Funds $332,310.87 $42,858.00
Revenue $82,106.68 $83,293.20 $96,816.81 $69,804.04 $74,681.40 $100,985.38 $61,982.65 $63,911.86 $65,244.73 $90,486.76 $67,900.93 $108,216.60 $965,431.04
Expense $94,660.34 $87,503.06 $104,489.98 $71,763.52 $62,490.35 $85,613.60 $88,196.48 $73,251.65 $109,510.66 $70,856.21 $80,363.24 $80,743.66 $1,009,442.75
Balance ($12,553.66) ($4,209.86) ($7,673.17) ($1,959.48) $12,191.05 $15,371.78 ($26,213.83) ($9,339.79) ($44,265.93) $19,630.55 ($12,462.31) $27,472.94 ($44,011.71)
Water Sold Cu Ft 299369 310960 266284 241692 232942 169355 194345 217741 144425 244412 237414 308832 2,867,771
Water Sold Acre f 6.87 7.14 6.11 5.55 5.35 3.89 4.46 5.00 3.32 5.61 5.45 7.09 65.84

FY 2018/2019
Month Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Fiscal Total
State Billing $26,723.91 $20,971.00 $19,858.71 $19,390.52 $86,944.14
Property Tax $1,288.59 $169.19 $7,205.82 $8,542.19 $33,187.58 $1,319.32 $4,888.55 $2,227.01 $22,928.34 $3,062.24 $1,057.02 $85,875.85
Water $41,336.59 $45,279.14 $41,178.74 $34,050.67 $30,760.16 $24,353.21 $29,009.60 $27,745.06 $24,146.67 $35,445.24 $29,158.01 $38,455.33 $400,918.42
Sewer $47,258.33 $53,156.35 $47,379.43 $39,628.31 $35,491.84 $28,149.21 $34,169.78 $32,181.86 $27,850.19 $41,666.62 $33,854.74 $44,856.07 $465,642.73
Service $7,111.73 $7,113.60 $7,113.60 $7,113.60 $7,079.40 $7,079.40 $7,147.80 $7,079.40 $7,079.40 $7,079.40 $7,045.20 $7,079.40 $85,121.93
Late Fees $461.43 $201.49 $290.08 $168.71 $600.53 $135.60 $178.43 $146.51 $126.87 $177.46 $111.54 $272.66 $2,871.31
Grant Funds $11,367.00 $18,753.05
Revenue $97,456.67 $105,750.58 $122,854.95 $88,167.11 $82,474.12 $113,876.00 $71,824.93 $72,041.38 $81,288.85 $107,297.06 $73,231.73 $111,111.00 $1,127,374.38
Expense $81,495.91 $74,250.58 $102,279.81 $104,990.12 $111,554.79 $92,037.25 $94,850.91 $94,625.06 $71,744.58 $105,016.25 $89,244.32 $98,066.81 $1,120,156.39
Balance $15,960.76 $31,500.00 $20,575.14 ($16,823.01) ($29,080.67) $21,838.75 ($23,025.98) ($22,583.68) $9,544.27 $2,280.81 ($16,012.59) $13,044.19 $7,217.99
Water Sold Cu Ft 334631 367360 332914 275609 243491 195107 236456 227602 197397 288979 236030 311046 3,246,622
Water Sold Acre f 7.68 8.43 7.64 6.33 5.59 4.48 5.43 5.23 4.53 6.63 5.42 7.14 74.53

FY 2019/2020
Month Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Fiscal Total
State Billing $25,528.71 $22,455.35 $15,776.54 $7,016.19 $70,776.79
Property Tax $1,218.61 $2,752.21 $3,126.48 $5,305.64 $6,019.52 $23,503.23 $13,612.60 $5,282.91 $2,659.00 $15,436.18 $9,385.45 $916.22 $89,218.05
Water $41,718.97 $39,623.52 $40,324.01 $43,808.36 $32,208.00 $23,432.56 $33,732.14 $34,067.23 $24,268.55 $17,909.86 $28,582.31 $36,460.31 $396,135.82
Sewer $48,137.21 $45,503.27 $45,161.69 $48,244.57 $34,916.02 $26,527.95 $39,321.56 $39,368.21 $27,637.52 $19,243.28 $29,934.22 $37,683.06 $441,678.56
Service $7,113.60 $7,045.20 $7,079.40 $7,451.10 $7,489.26 $7,344.54 $7,525.44 $7,453.08 $7,489.26 $7,489.26 $7,489.26 $7,453.08 $88,422.48
Recycled Water $0.00
Late Fees $1,957.04 $2,399.24 $1,407.87 $468.45 $316.84 $1,136.41 $237.28 $307.96 $2,793.44 $5,540.71 $4,647.78 $3,802.45 $25,015.47
Grant Funds $8,750.00 $167,376.61 $1,485.90 $8,369.50 $185,982.01
Revenue $100,145.43 $97,323.44 $122,628.16 $105,278.12 $80,949.64 $104,400.04 $94,429.02 $86,479.39 $80,624.31 $65,619.29 $80,039.02 $93,331.31 $1,111,247.17
Expense $90,205.84 $67,705.50 $94,401.58 $97,595.50 $87,822.01 $86,173.97 $85,716.44 $75,643.11 $62,582.54 $73,942.83 $90,232.61 $79,762.52 $991,784.45
Balance $9,939.59 $29,617.94 $28,226.58 $7,682.62 ($6,872.37) $18,226.07 $8,712.58 $10,836.28 $18,041.77 ($8,323.54) ($10,193.59) $13,568.79 $119,462.72
Water Sold Cu Ft 336845 319458 323518 329822 242893 179311 260006 261505 185972 137196 217871 274085 3,068,482
Water Sold Acre f 7.73 7.33 7.43 7.57 5.58 4.12 5.97 6.00 4.27 3.15 5.00 6.29 70.44

FY 2017/2018



 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.  CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. Review and approval of Minutes for the Regular 
Meeting on July 8, 2020.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

SSCSD Board Minutes     Page 1 of 6 
 

MINUTES 
SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 
Wednesday, July 8, 2020 

3:00 pm 
 

Internet Meeting Location 
 

1. REGULAR SESSION: 3:00 PM  
A. Chairperson Kellas – Present      General Manager, Charlie Grace 

Vice-Chairperson Russell – Present   District Counsel, Natalie Frye Laacke  
Director Carson – Present 
Director Maurer – Present  
Director de la Rosa – Present 

 
Vice-Chairperson Russell and Director de la Rosa had technical difficulty and were delayed in joining 
the meeting.   

 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: 

 
Public Comment – Bob Hather commented on the moratorium in San Simeon and the need for an 
Environmental Impact Review (EIR). He stated that as a property owner this requirement impacted him.  
 
Henry Krzciuk commented that delaying additional development was related to the water storage 
project and unnecessary delays that were related to project mismanagement. He also discussed the 
conservation easement, the Ranchland Trust and the view shed impacts.  
 
Director Carson inquired with Charlie Grace about water quantity in the community and the possibility of 
removing the moratorium.  
 
Charlie Grace responded about the amount of allowable water being pumped under the well permits.   

 
3. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS AND REPORTS:   

 
A. STAFF REPORTS:  
 i. Sheriff’s Report – Commander Nelson provided the report for June. 
 
 ii. Superintendent’s Report – Jerry Copeland provided a summary of June activities. 
 
 iii. General Manager’s Report – Charlie Grace provided a summary of June Activities. 
 

Vice-Chairperson Russell requested that the grant summaries listed as part of the GM 
report include a brief description of what the grant related too.  

 
iv. District Financial Summary – Cortney Murguia provided a summary of the monthly 

financials.  



 

 
 

SSCSD Board Minutes     Page 2 of 6 
 

 
v. District Counsel’s Report – Natalie Frye Laacke provided a Summary of June 

Activities.    
 
B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS: None 
                  
C.  SPECIAL PRESENTATION: None 

  
4. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS: 

Public Comment – Henry Krzciuk commented on the meeting minutes and requested that his written 
comments become part of the meeting minutes. He also commented on an agreement between the 
District and Oliveira Consulting that he referred to as a secret agreement that needed to be brought 
forward so that the Board and the public could provide feedback.  

 
A. Review and approval of Minutes for the Regular Meeting on June 10, 2020.  

 
B. Review and approval of Disbursements Journal.  
 
C. Approval of Resolution 20-422 updating signatures including facsimile signatures for 

Banking services on behalf of the SSCSD.  
 

A motion was made to approve items 4A-4C.  
 
Motion: Kellas 
2nd: Russell 
All in: 5/0 
 
Roll Call: 

 Kellas: Yes  Russell: Yes     Carson: Yes         Maurer: Yes    De la Rosa: Yes 
 

5. BUSINESS ACTION ITEMS: 
 

A. Review of authorization of powers to the General Manager awarded under Resolution 20-419.  
 
Chairperson Kellas introduced this item.  
 
Henry Krzcuik commented that the Resolution could be annulled or voided. He requested that legal 
counsel please provide a legal basis for the Resolution. He also stated that the document had not 
been signed and was not on the website.   
 
There was no action taken regarding this matter.  
 

B. Adoption of Resolution 20-423 establishing the District’s Appropriation Limit for Fiscal year 
2020-2021.  

 



 

 
 

SSCSD Board Minutes     Page 3 of 6 
 

Chairperson Kellas introduced this item. There was no public comment on this item.  
A motion was made to adopt resolution 20-423.  
 
Motion: Kellas 
2nd: De la Rosa 
All in: 5/0 
 
Roll Call: 

 Kellas: Yes  Russell: Yes   Carson: Yes         Maurer: Yes      De la Rosa: Yes 
 

 
C. Review of the draft Budget FY 2020/2021.  

 
Michael Hanchett introduced the item and provided a summary of what was discussed at the 
Budget Committee meeting. He commented on changes to the cost of liability insurance, the outfall 
inspection, and other changes to operation and maintenance items, and the increase in legal fees.   
 
There was a motion to approve the preliminary version of the FY 20/21 budget.   
 
Motion: Kellas 
2nd: De la Rosa 
All in: 4/1 
Abstain: Carson 
 
Roll Call: 

 Kellas: Yes  Russell: Yes      Carson: Abstain        Maurer: Yes      De la Rosa: Yes 
 

 
D. Consideration of Chairperson’s appointment of a new member to the Water & Budget 

Committees.  
 

Chairperson Kellas introduced the item. She made the following recommendations for the 
committees. She also asked if any members of the public would like to be added as committee 
members.  
 
David Sansone asked that be added to the Water Committee.  
 
Budget Committee:   Water Committee: 

      Daniel de la Rosa (D)   Michael Hanchett 
      William Maurer (D)   David Sansone 
      Michael Hanchett    Leroy Price 
      Kathy Fry     John Russell (D) 
      Daniel de la Rosa (D) 
 
     A motion was made to add David Sansone to the Water Committee.  
 



 

 
 

SSCSD Board Minutes     Page 4 of 6 
 

Motion: Kellas 
2nd: Carson 
All in: 5/0 
 
Roll Call: 

 Kellas: Yes  Russell: Yes      Carson: Yes         Maurer: Yes      De la Rosa: Yes 
 
 A motion was made to remove Kellas from the Budget Committee and add Director Maurer.  
 

Motion: Kellas 
2nd: Russell 
All in: 5/0 
 
Roll Call: 

 Kellas: Yes  Russell: Yes      Carson: Yes         Maurer: Yes      De la Rosa: Yes 
 
E. Direction to staff regarding real property offer for A.P.N. 013.091.027. 

 
Chairperson Kellas introduced this item.  
 
Natalie Frye Laacke commented that staff had determined that this matter did not need to be part of 
the closed session. She stated that the Board did not have enough information related to the 
property to be able to provide any direction to staff.  
 
A copy of the letter from the property owner to the District was shown as part of the Zoom shared 
screen function. This allowed all members of the public to see the correspondence.  
 
Henry Krzcuik commented that he had not received a copy of the letter.  
 
Staff stated that an email was sent to the Board and members of the Board Packet Distribution list 
at 2:38 pm containing a copy of the letter.  

 
6. BOARD/STAFF GENERAL DISCUSSIONS AND PROPOSED AGENDA ITEMS – None 

 
7. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS– 

Henry Krzcuik commented about where the funds would come from. He expressed his concerns about 
using water funds to reimburse sewer funds while keeping in compliance with prop 218 laws.  
 
Michael Hanchett stated that the Board had discussed this matter several years ago and he questioned 
the procedures for determining residential and commercial EDU allocations.  
 
David Sansone remarked that he believed that the property used to be zoned commercial and not 
residential. He also asked that staff verify that any dates included in a refund request would be verified 
that the zoning determination had been finalized.  
 



 

 
 

SSCSD Board Minutes     Page 5 of 6 
 

8. ADJOURN FOR CLOSED SESSION @ 4:09 PM 
A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9: 
(Number of cases: 1 – Manish Gupta) 

 
B. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS (Gov. Code Section 54956.8) 

*This matter was discussed as part of the Business Action Items E.  
 

9. RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION – 5:33 PM 
No reportable action was taken regarding this matter. 

  
10. ADJOURNMENT  @ 5:34 PM 

 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.  CONSENT AGENDA 
 

B.   Review and approval of minutes for the special    
meeting on July 31, 2020.  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS CLOSED SESSION MEETING 
Friday July 31, 2020 

9:00 AM 
 

Internet Meeting Location 
 

1. CLOSED SESSION - @ 9:05 AM  
A. Chairperson Kellas – Present     General Manager, Charlie Grace 

Vice-Chairperson Russell – Present District Counsel, Natalie Frye Laacke  
Director Carson – Present 
Director Maurer – Present  
Director de la Rosa – Present 

 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT 

There were no members of the public present and no public comment.  
 

3. CLOSED SESSION.  The Board will hold a Closed Session to discuss the following 
item: 
 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of 
Section 54956.9: (Number of cases: 1 – Manish Gupta) 

 
4. RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION – @ 10:47 AM 

Reportable Action (Government Code Section 54957.1. (2)) – A motion was passed to 
reject the claim.  

 
5. ADJOURNMENT – @ 10:48 AM 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.  CONSENT AGENDA 
 

C.  Review and approval of Disbursements 
Journal.      

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
 Disbursements Journal

 August 2020
Type Date Num Name Memo Paid Amount

Check written before board meeting - service deposit required

Bill Pmt -Check 08/03/2020 2490 Lost Coast Painting Interior painting RO building.  Bid 966958 dated 2/28/20 -6,500.00

August 2020 Disbursements

Paycheck 08/12/2020 2053 DANIEL de la ROSA Board Service July 2 through August 1, 2020. -92.35

Paycheck 08/12/2020 2054 GWEN KELLAS Board Service July 2 through August 1, 2020. -92.35

Paycheck 08/12/2020 2055 JOHN K RUSSELL Board Service July 2 through August 1, 2020. -92.35

Paycheck 08/12/2020 2056 WILLIAM E MAURER Board Service July 2 through August 1, 2020. -92.35

Paycheck 08/12/2020 2057 WILLIAM J CARSON Board Service July 2 through August 1, 2020. -92.35

Bill Pmt -Check 08/12/2020 2072
Adamski Moroski Madden Cumberland & 
Green Legal services. Service period through 6/30/20. Inv 51029 dated 07/17/20. -7,905.76

Bill Pmt -Check 08/12/2020 2058 Kathleen Fry Bookkeeping Services Bookkeeping services July 2020. Inv 2020-07-CSD dated 7/31/20. -1,320.00

Bill Pmt -Check 08/12/2020 2059 Kathleen Fry Bookkeeping Services
Budget committee services. Assist budget prep FY 20/21.  Inv 2020-7-spec 
dated 7/31/2020. -385.00

Bill Pmt -Check 08/12/2020 2061 Lori Mather Video Services
Convert 187 board meeting videos from DVD to mp4 format.  Inv dated 
7/28/20. -4,194.00

Bill Pmt -Check 08/12/2020 2062 New Times
Posting public notices regarding solid waste and budget meeting.  Inv 
314343 dated 7/16/20. -108.00

Bill Pmt -Check 08/12/2020 2063 New Times Public notice regarding on-call engineering.  Inv 313915 dated 7/2/20. -54.00

Bill Pmt -Check 08/12/2020 2064 Oliveira Environmental Consulting LLC
Prof svcs 6/24 - 7/28/20. Water tank project, grants: LCP, NFWF, OPC, et 
al. Inv OEC-2020-024 dated 7/28/20. -3,190.00

Bill Pmt -Check 08/12/2020 2065 Rogelio Salas
Weed Abatement serivces: Castillo, Pico, Jasper and Vista del Mar.  Inv  
9191 dated 6/30/20. -2,175.00

Bill Pmt -Check 08/12/2020 2066 rrm design group
Solid waste authority,  coordinate with LAFCO.  Inv 0440-02-0620 dated 
7/13/20. -291.25

Bill Pmt -Check 08/12/2020 2067 Significant Digits, Inc.
Annual license fee for SD reader route manager software and reading 
device.  Inv 20H-179-221 dated 7/1/20. -550.00

Bill Pmt -Check 08/12/2020 2068 Simply Clear Marketing & Media
Monthly website service fee for period Aug 21 - Sep 20, 2020.  Inv 305941 
dated 7/31/20. -400.00

Bill Pmt -Check 08/12/2020 2069 SLOACTTC LAFCO 2020-2021.  Invoice dated 7/7/2019. -2,637.40

Bill Pmt -Check 08/12/2020 2070
Wood Environment & Infrastructure 
Solutio

On-Call Grant Support Services through 07/3/20.  Inv S49833877 dated 
07/20/20. -325.00

Bill Pmt -Check 08/12/2020 2071 Grace Environmental Services
Operations Management and Maintenance Fees August 2020.   Inv # 1388 
dated 08/01/20. -54,899.66

Check 08/12/2020 2060 void Void check 2060 due to mis-print 0.00

Check 08/25/2020 Elec Pymt CalPERS Fiscal Services Division Retiree Health monthly premium for Sept 2020. -353.08

Check 08/25/2020 Elec Pymt CalPERS Fiscal Services Division
Unfunded Accrued Liability only - prepayment for Sept 2020. Cust. ID # 
7226734344. -1,317.97

Liability Check 08/27/2020 Elec Pymt United States Treasury (US Treasury) Payroll tax payment for paychecks dated 08/12/20. -76.50

TOTAL -87,144.37



 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.  CONSENT AGENDA 
 

D.  Updates to the policy and procedure manual    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



     SSCSD BOARD MEETING STAFF REPORT  
 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM 

Item 4.D. Review and approval of updates to the Policy and 
Procedures Manual.  
 
Summary: 

Staff has made three updates to the Policy & Procedures manual. The first relates to 
updating the Board meeting time, the second was the addition of the executed conflict 
of interest code. The third change was an update to the harassment policy that was 
approved by the Board in October 2019.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Enc: Policy and Procedures Manual with proposed changes 



 

1 
 

  
 

SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES GOVERNING THE  
SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT AND BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

SECTION 1.00   General Policies 
SECTION 2.00  Board of Directors 
SECTION 3.00   Duties of the Board of Directors 
SECTION 4.00   Staff and Consultants 
SECTION 5.00   Duties of Staff 
SECTION 6.00   Board Meetings: Time, Place, and Manner 
SECTION 7.00   Board Meeting Agendas 
SECTION 8.00   Board Meeting Minutes 
SECTION 9.00   Rules of Order for Board Meetings 
SECTION 10.00   Actions and Decisions of the Board of Directors 
SECTION 11.00   Deviations 
SECTION 12.00   Records 
SECTION 13.00   Committees of the District 
SECTION 14.00   Board of Directors’ Conduct 
SECTION 15.00   Training, Education, and Conferences. 
SECTION 16.00   Ordinance Adoption Policy 
SECTION 17.00   Complaints/Claims Procedures 
SECTION 18.00   Staff and Operations  
SECTION 19.00   Procurement 
SECTION 20.00  Conflict of Interest 
SECTION 21.00  Social Media Policy 
SECTION 22.00  Applying for Grants 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approved May 2019 
Amended October 2019August 2020 

 



 

2 
 

 
 

SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES GOVERNING THE 
SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVCES DISTRICT AND BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS  
 
 

SECTION 1.00 General Policies 
 
Introduction.  The Board of Directors is the governing and legislative body of the District. 
All action of the District shall be taken by the Board and not by individual Directors.  The 
Board of Directors shall be the policymakers of the District, establishing policy after receiving 
necessary information from staff and other persons as deemed necessary.  No individual Board 
Member shall represent a policy as the District's policy unless said policy has been determined 
by the Board nor shall any board member act unilaterally in regard to representing the board 
or its policies in any public forum. 
 
1.01 Purpose of Board Policies. It is the intent of the Board of Directors of the San Simeon 
Community Services District to maintain a Manual of Policies. Contained therein shall be a 
comprehensive listing of the Board's current policies, being the rules and regulations enacted 
by the Board. The Manual of Policies will serve as a resource for Directors, staff, and members 
of the public in determining the manner in which matters of District business are to be 
conducted. 
 
1.02 Conflicts with the Law.  If any policy or portion of a policy contained within the 
Manual of Policies is in conflict with rules, regulations, or legislation having authority over 
the San Simeon Community Services District, said rules, regulations, or legislation shall 
prevail. 
 
1.03 Adoption/Amendment of Policies.  A Director or General Manager may initiate the 
consideration of a new policy or to amend a policy.  A written draft of the proposed new policy 
or amendment should be submitted to the General Manager to be included for consideration 
on the agenda of the appropriate regular meeting of the Board of Directors.  Adoption of a new 
policy or an amendment shall be accomplished at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors 
and shall require a three-fifths (3/5) affirmative vote of the entire Board of Directors. 
 

1.03.01 Process of Adopting or Amending Policy.  Before considering the adoption 
or amendment of any policy, Directors shall have the opportunity to review the proposed 
adoption or amendment at the regular Board of Directors’ meeting prior to the meeting at which 
consideration for adoption or amendment is to be given. Copies of the proposed policy 
adoption or amendment shall be included in the agenda information packet for any meeting of 
consideration. The agenda information packets with said copies shall be made available to each 
Director for review at least three (3) days prior to any meeting of consideration. 
 
SECTION 2.00 Board of Directors 
 



 

3 
 

2.01 Authority of the Board.  The Board of Directors is the governing body of the District.  
The Board shall act only at its regular meeting, regular adjourned meetings, special meetings, 
or emergency meetings. 
 
2.02 Officers.  At the regular meeting in December, the Directors shall elect one of their 
members Chairperson of the Board and another of the members Vice-Chairperson of the 
Board. Term of office for each shall be one (1) year.  
 
2.03 Attendance at Meetings.  Members of the Board of Directors shall attend all regular 
and special meetings of the Board unless there is good cause for absence. 
 
2.04 Vacancy.  A vacancy shall occur if any member ceases to discharge the duty of his/her 
office for the period of three (3) consecutive months except as authorized by the Board of 
Directors. 
 
2.05 Renumeration.  Members of the Board of Directors shall receive a monthly stipend, 
the amount of which shall be annually established by the Board as set forth in the adopted 
budget. However, a member of the Board who does not attend the regular monthly meeting of 
the Board is not entitled to the monthly stipend. 
 
2.06 Reimbursement. Members of the Board of Directors shall be reimbursed for all 
legitimate expenses incurred in attending any meetings or in making any trips on official 
business of the Board when so authorized in accordance with policies. Reimbursement for the 
cost of the use of a Director's vehicle shall be on the basis of total miles driven and at the rate 
specified in the Internal Revenue Service Guidelines in effect at the time of the vehicle use. 
 
2.07 Membership in Associations. The Board of Directors shall ordinarily hold 
membership in and attend meetings of such national, state, and local associations as may exist 
which have applicability to the functions of the District and shall look upon such memberships 
as an opportunity for in-service training.  The Board of Directors shall maintain membership 
in the California Special Districts Association and shall insure that annual dues are paid when 
due.  The Chairperson shall be selected to represent the District in accordance with said 
chapter's constitution/bylaws, and the Vice-Chairperson shall serve as an alternate for the 
representation. 
 
SECTION 3.00 Duties of the Board of Directors 
 
3.01 Presiding Officer.  The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the Board. The 
Vice-Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the Board in the absence of the Chairperson. 
If both the Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson are absent, the Directors in attendance shall 
select a Director to preside over the meeting. 
 
3.02 Duties of the Chairperson.  The Chairperson of the Board shall preserve order and 
decorum and shall decide questions of order subject to appeal to the Board of Directors. The 
Chairperson from the chair may place a motion before the Board, second a motion, and vote 
irrespective of the existence of an otherwise tie vote. 
 
The Chairperson shall act as spokesperson for the Board with respect to its actions and policies 
and those of the District. This provision, however, shall not preclude any other member of the 
Board from making appropriate comments within the scope of his or her position. 



 

4 
 

 
The Chairperson, or any member of the Board or staff person so designated, shall represent the 
Board where it is appropriate or desirable for the District to appear at meetings of other public 
agencies, private entities, before public or private groups, or on other public or private 
occasions. However, this provision shall not limit the attendance of any Director or authorized 
officer or staff member of the District at other public gatherings or meetings.  Prior to attending 
such a gathering or meeting, Directors are encouraged to review Government Code Section 
54952.2(c) and ensure their attendance is in conformance with the requirements of the Brown 
Act. (Please refer to Section 3.04) 
 
To obtain such information as may be necessary and appropriate to assist the Board in its 
deliberations, the Chairperson shall work with the General Manager, District Counsel, or other 
staff member of the District. The Chairperson may also direct staff to implement the policies 
and decisions of the Board. Individual members of the Board shall not act independently to 
direct staff in the performance of their duties unless specifically provided for in these policies 
or as approved by the Board.  
 
3.03 Duties of the Vice-Chairperson.  The Vice-Chairperson shall act if the Chairperson 
is absent or unable to act and shall exercise all of the powers of the Chairperson on such 
occasions. 
 
3.04 Authority of Individual Board Members.  All powers of the District shall be 
exercised and performed by the Board as a body. Individual Board Members, except as 
provided in these policies or otherwise authorized by the Board, shall have no independent 
power to act for the District, the Board, or to direct staff of the District.  
 
SECTION 4.00 Staff and Consultants 
 
4.01 Staff.  The Board shall, as necessary, appoint a General Manager and a District 
Secretary. The General Manager may also act as District Secretary, but no Director shall be 
appointed as General Manager or District Secretary. The General Manager, District Secretary, 
or a third party may also be appointed as the Finance Officer. 
 
4.02 Consultants and Compensation.  The Board may also appoint and employ, fix the 
compensation of, and prescribe the duties and authorities of other officers, employees, 
attorneys, engineers, and other professional consultants as necessary or convenient for the 
business of the District subject to the Procurement Policy.  (Please refer to Section 19.00) 
 
4.03 General Manager.  The General Manager shall be the Executive Officer of the San 
Simeon Community Services District and for the Board of Directors.  The General Manager 
may be employed by the District through written agreement or retained as a consultant through 
written agreement.  If any such written agreement between the General Manager and the 
District is in conflict with any District policy, said agreement shall prevail. 
 
SECTION 5.00 Duties of Staff 
 
5.01 Duties of General Manager.  The General Manager shall be responsible for all of the 
following: 

 the implementation of the policies established by the Board of Directors for the 
operation of the District, 



 

5 
 

 the supervision of the District’s facilities and services, 
 the supervision of the District’s finances. 

 
5.02 Duties of District Secretary.  The District Secretary shall prepare and mail or send by 
electronic media to each person entitled thereto copies of agendas, minutes of the preceding 
meeting, and notice of meetings. The District Secretary shall prepare minutes for adoption by 
the Board of Directors setting forth all actions taken by the Board and shall preserve minutes 
and other records of actions of the governing Board as per the Records Retention Policy (Please 
see Ord.19-407). 
 
SECTION 6.00 Meetings: Time, Place, and Manner 
 
6.01 Time. The time for regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be the second 
Wednesday of each calendar month at 3:00 p.m. 6:00 p.m.  The date, time, and place of regular 
Board meetings shall be reconsidered annually at the annual organizational meeting of the 
Board. 
 
6.02 Place.  The place of meetings of the Board of Directors shall be in a Cavalier Banquet 
Room located at 250 San Simeon Avenue, San Simeon, California, unless otherwise designated 
by the Board of Directors. 
 
6.03 Recording.  The proceedings of all regular meetings shall be recorded by videographer. 
The proceedings of all special meetings shall be recorded by audio. Recordings shall be 
retained in accordance with the record retention policy pursuant to Resolution 19-407. Video 
and audio taping of regular or special meetings shall conform to Government Code Sections 
54953.5 & 54953.6.  
 
6.04 Special and Emergency Meetings.  The time, place, and manner of calling all other 
meetings of the Board of Directors shall be undertaken as prescribed in the Government Code 
Section 54950 et seq. 
 
6.05 Adjourned Meetings.  A majority vote by the Board of Directors may terminate any 
meeting at any place in the agenda to any time and place specified in the order of adjournment, 
except that if no Directors are present at any regular or adjourned regular meeting, the General 
Manager may declare the meeting adjourned to a stated time and place. 
 
6.06 Compliance with the Brown Act.  All meetings of the Board of Directors and 
Committees shall be open and public and all persons shall be permitted to attend any public 
meeting of the Board of Directors except as provided by law; provided, however, that closed 
sessions may be held when permitted by law. 
 
6.07 Secret Ballots.  Secret ballots are not allowed. 
 
SECTION 7.00 Agendas. 
 
7.01 Setting of Agenda.  The General Manager, in consultation with the Board Chairperson, 
shall set the agenda. The General Manager and Board Chairperson shall consider any matter 
requested by a Director for inclusion on the agenda. Committee recommendations on topics to 
be added to the agenda shall be given to the Board Chairperson or said designee.  A member 
of the public may also request that a matter directly related to District business be placed on 



 

6 
 

the agenda.  Such a request must be made to the General Manager or the Board Chairperson at 
least fifteen (15) day prior to the date of the meeting.  With regard to all requests to add items 
to the agenda, the General Manager and the Board Chairperson may use their discretion as to 
which items are included.  The agenda shall also contain any matter requested by a majority of 
the Board. 
 
7.02 Consent Calendar.  Agendas of Board meetings shall incorporate a consent calendar 
listing items of a routine nature not normally requiring discussion.  The following is a listing 
of consent calendar items which may be amended by the direction of the Board of Directors or 
by the General Manager and the District Secretary as they deem appropriate: (1) approval of 
minutes, (2) approval of bills paid, (3) informational items, and (4) certain resolutions (example: 
banking authority).  Approval of the consent calendar shall take place by a motion and a second 
of the Board and passed by a roll call vote indicating a majority vote. 
 
The District adopts the following general guidelines in reviewing and approving consent 
agenda items: 
 

1. The Chairperson shall announce the item and read each consent agenda item into the 
record.  

2. The Chairperson shall ask if there are any public comments on any item within the 
consent agenda. 

3. Once all public comments are done, the Chairperson shall ask the Board members if 
they would like to pull an item off the consent agenda for full discussion.  If an item 
is pulled off the consent agenda, it shall be added as a Business Item for full Board 
discussion. 

4. The Chairperson shall next ask if the Board members have any minor comments 
(typographical/spelling errors) or minor questions about any of the consent agenda 
items.  If so, the Board member shall then make the minor comment or ask staff a 
question. 

5. Once all minor comments/questions have been dealt with, the Chairperson shall ask if 
there is a motion to approve the consent agenda (if motion is not already made 
independently by another Board member); the motion, if it passes, shall approve all 
items within the consent agenda. 

 
7.03 Distribution.  The District Secretary shall prepare an agenda for each regular meeting 
and shall post and mail or send by electronic media the agenda to persons entitled thereto at 
least 72 hours prior to the meeting. The District Secretary shall prepare an agenda for each 
special meeting and post this agenda 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
7.04 Additional Distribution.  Agendas shall be mailed or sent by electronic media to any 
person who has on file a written request to receive agendas after the District has received 
payment of the appropriate fees to cover either faxing or mailing of said agendas. 
 
7.05 Agenda Change.  Upon a determination by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the members of 
the Board present at the meeting, or, if fewer than two-thirds (2/3) of the members are present, 
a unanimous vote of those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and 
that the need for action came to the attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda 
being posted, the Board may add an item to the agenda in accordance with Government Code 
Section 54954.2(b). Example:  If there are five (5) Board members present, four (4) affirmative 



 

7 
 

votes would be needed to add an agenda item.  If there are three (3) Board members present, 
three (3) affirmative votes would be needed to add an agenda item. 
 
7.06 Public Comments on Agenda Items.  Any member of the public may address the 
Board on any item on the agenda at the time that item is being considered by the Board. Each 
speaker will be limited to three (3) minutes per agenda item as monitored by the District 
Secretary. Additional time may be extended by the Chairperson. Speakers shall not be allowed 
to “split” their time, nor shall they be permitted to “reserve” all or any portion of their allotted 
time. If any person fails or refuses to abide by these rules, the Chairperson, after warning the 
speaker, may declare that the speaker is disrupting, disturbing, or impeding the orderly conduct 
of the meeting and order the speaker to leave the meeting room.  If another Board member 
disagrees that a speaker is disrupting the proceeding, that Board member may object to having 
the speaker leave the meeting room.  At such time, the full Board shall vote on whether the 
speaker should be required to leave or not. 
 
7.07 Public Comments on Items Not on the Agenda.  Any member of the public may 
address the Board on any item of interest to the public that is within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the District that is not on the agenda subject to the time limits and restrictions 
for public comments on agenda items. No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on 
the agenda unless authorized in accordance with the procedures set forth in Government Code 
Section 54954.2. The Board shall not engage in debate, dialogue, or take action on any matter 
brought to its attention under public comment, except to refer the matter to staff or to determine 
that the matter should be included on a future agenda for consideration and action. 
 
7.08 Manner of Addressing the Board by an Individual.  A member of the public 
addressing the Board should give his or her name in an audible tone of voice for the record. 
All remarks shall be addressed to the Board as a body, not to any individual Director. No 
person, other than a Director, General Manager or District Counsel, and the person having the 
floor shall be permitted to enter into any general discussion without the permission of the 
Chairperson. 
 
7.09  Manner of Addressing the Board by a Group of Persons.  Whenever members of 
the public wish to address the Board on the same subject matter, it shall be proper for the 
Chairperson to request that a spokesperson be chosen by the group to address the Board and, 
in case additional matters are to be presented at the time by any member of that group, to limit 
the number of persons so addressing the Board so as to avoid repetition before the Board. The 
Chairperson may set a time limit for each side of an issue.  Government Code 54957.9 permits 
the legislative body to clear the room if the meeting is willfully interrupted so as to render 
further conduct of the meeting unfeasible. 
 
SECTION 8.00 Minutes 
 
8.01 Minutes.  The District Secretary shall keep minutes of regular and special meetings of 
the Board. Copies of said minutes shall be made for distribution to each member of the Board 
with the agenda for the next regular Board meeting. 
 
8.02 Record of Motions, Resolutions, and Ordinances.  Motions, resolutions, or 
ordinances shall be recorded as having passed or failed, and individual votes will be recorded 
unless the action was unanimous.  All resolutions and ordinances adopted by the Board shall 
be numbered consecutively, starting anew at the beginning of each fiscal year. 



 

8 
 

 
8.03 Procedure for Minutes.  The minutes of Board meetings shall be maintained as 
hereinafter outlined. 
 
 8.03.01  Procedure: 

 date, place, and type of each meeting 
 directors present and absent by name 
 call to order 
 arrival of tardy Directors by name 
 pre-adjournment departure of Directors by name or if absence takes place 

when any agenda items are acted upon 
 adjournment of the meeting 

 
 8.03.02  Board Actions: 

 approval or amended approval of the minutes of preceding meetings 
 complete information as to each subject, including the roll call record of the 

vote on a motion if not unanimous 
 all Board resolutions and ordinances in complete context, numbered serially 

for each fiscal year 
 a record by number of all warrants approved for payment  
 adoption of the annual budget 
 financial reports, including water and wastewater sales, balances of District 

checking accounts, and a monthly balance sheet   
 
8.04 Storage.  The official minutes of the regular and special meetings of the Board shall 
be saved on the District computer in accordance with the Records Retention Policy.  (Please 
see Resolution 19-407.) This computer shall be backed up onto a hard drive that is stored in a 
safe deposit box that is located at an offsite location. Approved minutes of the Board of 
Directors’ meetings shall be public records open to inspection by the public. The Secretary 
shall make copies available to any person who has made a request in compliance with the 
California Public Records Request Act.  
 
SECTION 9.00 Rules of Order for Meetings 
 
9.01 General. Action items shall be brought before and considered by the board by motion 
in accordance with this policy. The board prefers a flexible form of meeting and, therefore, 
does not strictly follow Robert’s Rules of Order. 
 
9.02 Obtaining the Floor.  Any member of the Board desiring to speak should address the 
Chairperson and, upon recognition by the Chairperson, may address the subject under 
discussion. 
 
9.03 Motions.  Any member of the Board, including the Chairperson, may make or second a 
motion. A motion shall be brought and considered when a member of the Board makes a motion 
and another Director seconds the motion. The motion is then open to discussion and debate. After 
the matter has been fully discussed and debated, the Chairperson will call for the vote. 
 
9.04 Motion to Amend.  A main motion may be amended before it is voted on either by the 
consent of the members of the Board who moved and seconded or by a new motion and second. 



 

9 
 

 
9.05 Motion to Postpone.  A main motion may be postponed to a certain time by a motion 
to postpone which is then seconded and approved by a majority of the Board. 
 
9.06 Motion to Refer to Committee.  A main motion may be referred to a Board committee 
for further study and recommendation by a motion to refer to committee which is then 
seconded and approved by a majority vote of the Board. 
 
9.07 Motion to Close Debate and Vote Immediately.  As provided above, any member of 
the Board may move to close debate and immediately vote on a main motion. 
 
9.08 Motion to Adjourn.  A meeting may be adjourned by motion made, seconded, and 
approved by a majority vote of the Board before voting on a main motion. 
 
9.09 Decorum.  The Chairperson shall take whatever actions are necessary and appropriate 
to preserve order and decorum during Board meetings, including public hearings. The 
Chairperson may eject any person or persons making personal, impertinent, or slanderous 
remarks; refusing to abide by a request from the Chairperson; or otherwise interrupting the 
meeting or hearing. 
 
If any meeting is willfully interrupted by a person or a group so as to render the orderly conduct 
of such meeting infeasible and order cannot be restored by the removal of individuals who are 
willfully interrupting the meeting, the members of the legislative body conducting the meeting 
may order the meeting room cleared and continue in session. Only matters appearing on the 
agenda may be considered in such a session. Representatives of the press or other news media, 
except those participating in the disturbance, shall be allowed to attend any session held 
pursuant to this section. Nothing in this section shall prohibit the legislative body from 
establishing a procedure for readmitting an individual or individuals not responsible for 
willfully disturbing the orderly conduct of the meeting.  
 
SECTION 10.00 Actions and Decisions 
 
10.01 Method of Action.  The Board of Directors shall act only by ordinance, resolution, or 
motion in accordance with these policies.   
 
10.02 Majority/Quorum.  The majority of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the 
transaction of business. 
 
10.03 Majority Vote Required.  No ordinance, resolution, or motion shall be passed or shall 
become effective without the affirmative vote of at least a majority of the members of the 
Board.  Three (3) Directors represent a quorum for the conduct of business. Actions taken at a 
meeting where only a quorum is present, therefore, require three (3) unanimous votes to be 
effective (unless a four-fifths (4/5) vote is required by policy or other law).  A member 
abstaining in a vote is considered as absent for that vote. 
 
 Example 1: If three (3) of five (5) Directors are present at a meeting, a quorum exists 
and business can be conducted. However, if one (1) Director abstains on a particular action 
and the other two (2) cast "aye" votes, no action is taken because a "majority of the Board" did 
not vote in favor of the action. 
 



 

10 
 

 Example 2: If a proposed action requires a two-thirds (2/3) vote and two (2) Directors 
abstain, the proposed action cannot be approved because four (4) of the five (5) Directors 
would have to vote in favor of the action. 
 Example 3: If a vacancy exists on the Board and a vote is taken to appoint an individual 
to fill said vacancy, three (3) Directors must vote in favor of the appointment for it to be 
approved. If two (2) of the four (4) Directors present abstain, the appointment is not approved. 
 
10.04 Recordation of Vote Exceptions. For action taken by motion without the unanimous 
vote of all Directors present voting, the names of the Ayes and Noes shall be entered in the 
minutes. For passage of all ordinances and resolutions, the names of the Ayes, Noes, Abstain, 
and Absent shall be entered into the minutes of the Board. 
 
10.05 Direction to Staff.  During a public meeting, the Board may give directions, however, 
which are not formal action. Such directions do not require formal procedural process. For 
example, after an ordinance is adopted at a public meeting, the Board may direct staff to publish 
an ordinance summary in a newspaper of general circulation.  The Board may also direct staff 
to research a particular topic and place it on the agenda at the next regular Board meeting.  
Such directions include the Board's directives and instructions to the General Manager.  The 
Chairperson shall determine by consensus a Board directive and shall state it for clarification. 
Should any two (2) Directors challenge the statement of the Chairperson, a voice vote may be 
requested. A formal motion may be made to place a disputed directive on a future agenda for 
Board consideration or to take some other action (such as referring the matter to the General 
Manager for review and recommendation, etc.).  Informal action by the Board is still Board 
action and shall only occur during public meetings regarding matters which appear on the 
agenda for the Board meeting during which said informal action is taken. 
 
SECTION 11.00 Deviations 
 
11.00  Deviations.  No deviation from or failure to follow the procedures set forth in this Code 
shall invalidate any action or decision of the Board of Directors unless such deviation or failure 
has substantially prejudiced the rights of an interested person. 
 
SECTION 12.00 Records 
 
12.01 Records.  Public records of the San Simeon Community Services District shall be open 
to inspection as provided in the California Public Records Act. 
 
SECTION 13.00 Committees 
 
13.01 Standing Committees.   The District has the following standing committees: 

 Budget/Finances – This committee shall be concerned with the financial 
management of the District, including the preparation of an annual budget and 
major expenditures. 

 Water/Facility – This committee shall be concerned with the formulation of plans 
for arranging, realizing, and/or achieving the District’s goals in regard to alternative 
water sources and facility maintenance and upgrades. 

 
13.02 General Rules Governing Committees.  The Chairperson of the Board of Directors 
shall appoint one (1) or two (2) Board members and three (3) to five (5) members of the public 
to serve on the Standing Committees subject to Board approval.  The Chairperson of the Board 



 

11 
 

of Directors shall publicly announce the members of the standing committees for the ensuing 
year at the next regular Board meeting following the appointment of the Chairperson of the 
Board of Directors. Committees shall be governed by the following policies and rules. 

 At its first meeting, each Standing Committee shall select a Chairperson, who shall 
be one of the Board members on the committee. 

 No more than two Directors of the Board shall serve on any one Committee. Other 
Directors may attend Committee meetings as observers in accordance with the 
Brown Act.  As observers the Board members may not ask questions or make 
statements while attending the meeting, nor may they sit in the special chairs on the 
dais while attending the meeting. As observers the Board members have no 
authority to participate in any way in Committee discussions. 

 Committees should focus on matters that typically require extensive research and 
review.  

 A Committee may take no action. Recommendations for formal action by the Board 
of Directors are made in the Committee reports. 

 Any Committee that is appointed by action of the Board of Directors and/or has 
members of the public serving on the Committee shall then come under the posting 
requirements of the Brown Act and shall be open to the public. 

 The meetings of Standing Committees shall be held when called by the Chairperson 
of the Standing Committee, other Director member, or the Board Chairperson. 

 Duties and Functions: At the time the Chairperson of the Board of Directors forms 
the Standing Committee, he/she shall give instructions as to the duties for each 
Committee. Additional duties and functions may be delegated by the Chairperson, 
as need arises, subject to Board approval. 

 The Committee shall give a report at the regular meeting of the Board of Directors 
and if a need to take action should arise, the Committee shall bring a 
recommendation to the Board of Directors at any duly noticed meeting. The 
Committee Chairperson shall notify the General Manager of items to be placed on 
the agenda where action is needed one week prior to the meeting if possible. 

 
13.03 Ad Hoc Committees.  Ad hoc Committees may be created by the Board of Directors 
to undertake special assignments on behalf of the Board. An ad hoc Committee shall exist for 
a specified term or until its special assignments are completed, whichever comes first, but its 
existence may be extended for an added term or added assignments by action of the Board. 
Unless otherwise specified, members of an ad hoc Committee shall be appointed by the 
Chairperson of the Board, subject to Board approval, and shall serve at the Board’s pleasure. 
 
13.04. Special Committees.  In addition to the committees discussed above, Special 
Committees may be created by the Board of Directors to undertake special assignments on 
behalf of the Board. A Special Committee shall continue in existence indefinitely. Unless 
otherwise specified, members of a Special Committee shall be appointed by the Chairperson, 
subject to Board approval, and shall serve at the Board’s pleasure.  All Special Committee 
meetings shall be open to the public, have an agenda, and otherwise be subject to the Brown 
Act.  
 
SECTION 14.00 Board Conduct 
 
14.01 Conflict of Interest.  No Director shall make, participate in, or in any way attempt to 
use his or her official position to influence a decision on any issue when prohibited from doing 
so by the Political Reform Act of 1974 (Government Code Section 81000, et seq.), any other 



 

12 
 

law, or the District’s Conflict of Interest Code. (Please refer to Section 20.00.) A Director shall, 
when an agenda item is called, declare that he or she has a conflict of interest, state what the 
conflict of interest is, and shall remove him or herself from the Board room during the 
discussion. The Director’s removal shall be noted on the record by the District Secretary, who 
shall also note the Director’s return when the item is completed. 
 
14.02 Ethics.  Directors shall comply with the requirements of Government Code Section 
53235 by receiving at least two hours of training in general ethics principles and ethics laws 
relevant to District service every two years and shall file with the District Secretary a copy of 
the certificate verifying the completion of such training. Directors shall work with the General 
Manager, or said designee, to ensure adherence with all requirements of Government Code 
Section 53235.   
 
14.03 Decorum of Board of Directors during Board Meetings.  The Directors shall adhere 
to the following guidelines for conduct during all meetings. 

 The immediate and future needs of the District’s constituents should be the priority 
of the Board of Directors. 

 Once the Board of Directors takes action, Directors should not create barriers to the 
implementation of said action. 

 The work of the District is a team effort. All individuals should work together in 
the collaborative process, assisting each other in conducting the affairs of the 
District. 

 
14.04 Other Procedures for Directors.  Directors should practice the following procedures. 

1. In seeking clarification on informational items, Directors may approach professional 
staff members to obtain information needed to supplement, upgrade, or enhance their 
knowledge to improve legislative decision-making. 

2. In handling items related to safety, concerns for safety or hazards should be reported to 
the General Manager, said designee, or to the District office. Emergency situations 
should be dealt with immediately by seeking appropriate assistance. 

3. In seeking clarification for policy-related concerns, especially those involving 
personnel, legal action, land acquisition and development, finances, and programming, 
said concerns should be referred directly to the General Manager. 

4. When approached by District personnel concerning specific District policy, Directors 
should direct inquiries to the appropriate staff supervisor. The chain of command 
should be followed. 

5. Directors should develop a working relationship with the General Manager wherein 
current issues, concerns, and District projects can be discussed comfortably and openly. 

6. Unless a conflict of interest exists, Directors should not abstain from the Board's 
decision-making responsibilities. 

 
SECTION 15.00 Training, Education and Conferences. 
 
15.00 Educational Conferences.  Members of the Board of Directors are encouraged to 
attend educational conferences and professional meetings when the purpose of such activity is 
to improve District operation. Hence, there is no limit as to the number of Directors attending 
a particular conference or seminar when it is apparent that their attendance is beneficial to the 
District.  If multiple Directors are to attend an educational conference, it is recommended that 
prior to attending the conference, the Directors review Government Code Section 54952.2 (Ralph 
M. Brown Act) or confer with District Counsel. 



 

13 
 

 
15.01 Reimbursement for Educational Conferences.  It is the policy of the District to 
encourage Board development and excellence of performance by reimbursing expenses 
incurred for tuition, travel, lodging, and meals as a result of training, educational courses, 
participation with professional organizations, and attendance at local, state, and national 
conferences associated with the interests of the District. 
 

15.01.01 The Board member is responsible for making arrangements for 
conference and registration expenses and for per diem. Per diem, when appropriate, 
shall include reimbursement of expenses for meals, lodging, and travel. All expenses 
for which reimbursement is requested by Directors or that are billed to the District by 
Directors, shall be submitted to the General Manager, together with validated receipts. 

 
15.02 Approval by Chairperson.  Attendance by Directors at seminars, workshops, courses, 
professional organization meetings, and conferences shall be approved by the Chairperson of 
the Board of Directors prior to incurring any reimbursable costs. 
 
15.03 Expenses for Educational Conferences.  Expenses to the District for Board of 
Directors' training, education, and conferences should be kept to a minimum by utilizing 
recommendations for transportation and housing accommodations put forth by the General 
Manager and by: 

 utilizing hotel(s) recommended by the event sponsor in order to obtain discounted 
rates 

 Directors traveling together whenever feasible and economically beneficial 
 requesting reservations sufficiently in advance, when possible, to obtain discounted 

airfares and hotel rates 
 
15.04 No Educational Activities After Resignation.   Directors shall not attend a conference 
or training event for which there is an expense to the District if it occurs after they have 
announced their pending resignation or if it occurs after an election in which it has been 
determined that they will not retain their seat on the Board. A Director shall not attend a 
conference or training event when it is apparent that there is no significant benefit to the 
District. 
 
15.05 Report to Board After Educational Conferences.  Upon returning from seminars, 
workshops, conferences, etc., where expenses are reimbursed by the District, Directors will 
either prepare a written report for distribution to the Board or make a verbal report during the 
next regular meeting of the Board. Said report shall detail what was learned at the session(s) 
that will be of benefit to the District. Materials from the session(s) may be delivered to the 
District office to be included in the District library for the future use of other Directors and 
staff. 
 
16.00 Ordinance Adoption Policy 
 
16.01 Adoption and Waiting Period. Ordinances should be adopted on a roll call vote. 
Unlike cities and counties, a community services district does not have a first and second 
reading prior to an adoption. Rather, the appropriate motion to adopt an ordinance is to move 
adoption of Ordinance No.___ entitled "__________." Ordinarily, it is advisable to have a 30-
day waiting period before the effective date of the ordinance, although, unlike city and county 
adopted ordinances, this is not a mandatory requirement.  



 

14 
 

 
16.02 Publication Requirements. Unlike cities and counties, there is no overall requirement 
for publication of all ordinances. However, it is a good practice to publish adopted ordinances 
in a newspaper of general circulation in the area within 15 days after passage. Some types of 
ordinances may have specific requirements for publication of the ordinance before their 
effective date. This sometimes includes Federal or State grant projects. Likewise, there is not 
a general requirement for all ordinances to be adopted after public hearing. However, some 
specific actions require public hearings, such as certain grant projects or increases in fees. 
District Counsel should either prepare all District resolutions and ordinances or carefully 
review drafts of such documents prior to their placement on the Board's agenda to ensure that 
any notice, hearing, or format requirements are met. 
 
16.03 Reading and Alterations. All ordinances shall be read in full either at the time of 
introduction or passage, except when, after reading the title, further reading is waived by 
regular motion adopted by unanimous vote of the Board by the Directors present. Corrections 
of typographical or clerical errors are not alterations within the meaning of this section. 
 
16.04 Enacting Clause of Ordinance.  The form of enacting clause of all ordinances passed 
by the Board shall be: "Be it ordained by the Board of Directors of the San Simeon Community 
Services District as follows”. 
 
16.05 Execution of Ordinances.  All ordinances shall be signed by the Chairperson and 
attested by the District Secretary. 
 
SECTION 17.00 Complaints/ Claims Procedures 
 
17.01 General Public Complaints.  The Board of Directors desires that complaints from the 
public be resolved at the lowest possible administrative level and that the method for resolution 
of complaints be logical and systematic. A public complaint is an allegation by a member of 
the public of a violation or misinterpretation of a District policy, state, or federal statute by 
which the individual has been adversely affected. 
 
17.02 Method of Handling General Public Complaints Against the District.  The method 
of resolving complaints shall be as follows: 
 

1. The individual with a complaint shall first discuss the matter with the General 
Manager with the objective of resolving the matter informally. 

2. If the complaint refers to the General Manager, it will be referred to the Board 
Chairperson with the objective of resolving the matter informally.  

3. If the individual filing the complaint is not satisfied with the disposition of the 
matter by the General Manager or Board Chairperson, a written complaint may be 
filed with the Board of Directors within ten (10) days of receiving the General 
Manager’s or Chairperson’s decision.  

4. The Board may consider the matter at the next regular meeting or call a special 
meeting. The Board will expeditiously resolve the matter. In making the final 
decision, the Board may conduct conferences, hear testimony, as well as utilize the 
transcripts of written documentation. A written decision from the Board may be 
requested by the individual filing the complaint. 

 



 

15 
 

This policy in no way prohibits nor is intended to deter a member of the community or staff 
member from appearing before the Board to present verbally a testimony, complaint, or 
statement in regard to actions of the Board, District programs and services, or impending 
considerations of the Board. 
17.03 Complaints Concerning Staff or Contractors of the District.  The Board states its 
support of staff and its expectation that each shall perform in the spirit of excellent service to 
the community. The Board wishes to defend staff against malicious complaints while 
upholding standards of performance for each staff member and correcting problems.  Board 
members individually will refer compliments, suggestions, and criticisms about staff directly 
to the General Manager for appropriate consideration and action. 
 
17.04 Method of Handling Complaints Against District Staff/Contractors.  The method 
of resolving complaints shall be as follows. 
 

1. Complaints should first be made directly by the complainant to the staff member 
against whom the complaint is lodged. Community members are encouraged to 
attempt to orally resolve concerns with the staff member personally as soon as 
possible, within 30 days of the occurrence. 

2. If the issue cannot be resolved between the community member and the staff 
member informally, the complaint should be referred to the General Manager. 

3. The General Manager shall investigate the complaint and shall take appropriate 
measures to address the complaint once the investigation is complete.  The 
individual making the complaint shall be informed of the results of the investigation 
and with any actions/measures that were taken. 

4. If the General Manager deems it necessary, the matter may be referred to the Board.  
All charges or complaints against a staff member brought to a Board meeting shall 
comply with the requirements of Cal. Gov’t Code § 54950 et seq. 

5. No anonymous complaints concerning staff members will be processed by the 
District or Board. Such complaints shall be given to the General Manager, who 
shall note the content. Board and staff shall inform complainants that anonymous 
complaints will not be handled, receive attention, or be acted upon. 

6. Each person involved in a complaint shall act quickly so that the complaint may be 
solved promptly. Training on the appropriate resolution of complaints within the 
guidelines of this policy shall be held annually. 

 
17.05 Claims Against the District.  The purpose of this policy is to provide direction to 
District staff for processing and resolving claims against the District.  Inherent in this policy is 
the recognition that every claim will be unique and that guidelines cannot be written to 
accommodate every case.  Therefore, staff must use discretion and good sense in handling each 
claim. 
 
 17.05.01. Property (Land and Improvements) Damage Claims.  In the course of 
District operations, damage to land and improvements thereon occasionally occur due to the 
proximity of the District’s facilities to private property.  When District staff are aware that 
property has been damaged in the course of their work, restorative measures are to be taken to 
return the property as close to its original condition as possible. 
 

1. When property owners inform District staff members of damage to their 
property, the staff member receiving the claim will document in writing the 
time and date and a description of the stated circumstances and allegations.  



 

16 
 

Staff members should respond to questions, be cordial and respectful, but 
refrain from commenting on liability questions. 

2. As soon as possible after information about the damage has been received, it 
shall be given to the General Manager.  The General Manager, or said designee, 
shall investigate the property owner’s allegations. 

3. If the owner of damaged property informs a member of the Board of Directors, 
the information will be given to the General Manager.  Directors should not 
independently investigate claims but may go with staff to observe. 

4. Claims in excess of the District’s insurance deductible shall be forwarded to the 
insurance company (Special District Risk Management Authority, SDRMA), 
and the claimant shall be advised of this action. 

5. Claims for personal injury/wrongful death shall not be investigated by District 
staff or Directors but shall be immediately forwarded to the District’s insurance 
company. 

 
 17.05.02.  Property (Vehicles and Unsecured Property) Damage Claims.  All 
claims of damage to vehicles or other unsecured property shall be submitted to the General 
Manager.  He/she shall review the damage claim and the requested restitution.  If the General 
Manager determines that the damage is the District’s responsibility, he/she may authorize 
repairs or reimbursement of expenses to an amount not to exceed $500.   Claims in excess of 
$500 shall be forwarded to the insurance company. 
 
 17.05.03.  Claims Form.  All damage claims must be submitted in writing on a District 
claim form.  This will ensure that a claim is valid and protect important rights of the District.  
District staff shall provide no assistance to the claimant in filling out the claim form. The 
claimant must fill out the claim form in its entirety and submit it via mail, FAX, or personal 
delivery to the District office.  Upon receipt, office staff shall date-stamp the document.   
 
Anyone not wishing to file a claim on the District form, may present the claim by letter if it 
conforms to Section 910 and Section 910.2, California Government Code.  Section 910 
specifies that a claim needs to show all of the following: 
 

1. the name and post office address of the claimant; 
2. the post office address to which the person presenting the claim desires notices 

to be sent; 
3. the date, place, and other circumstances of the occurrence or transaction which 

gave rise to the claim asserted; 
4. a general description of the indebtedness, obligation, injury, damage, or loss 

incurred so far as it may be known as the time of presentation of the claim; 
5. the name or names of the staff member(s) causing the injury, damage, or loss, 

if known; 
6. the amount claimed as of the date of presentation of the claim, including the 

estimated amount of any prospective injury, damage, or loss, insofar as it may 
be known at the time of presentation of the claim, together with the basis of 
computation of the amount claimed. 

7. Section 910.2 of the California Government Code specifies the following: “the 
claim shall be signed by the claimant or by some person on his behalf.  Claims 
against local public entities for supplies, materials, equipment or services need 
not be signed by the claimant or on his behalf if presented on a billhead or 
invoice regularly used in the conduct of the business of the claimant.” 



 

17 
 

8. If the filed letter/claim does not meet the requirements of California 
Government Code 910 and 910.2, then a letter shall be sent to the claimant 
informing him/her of this fact. 

 
 
SECTION 18.00 Staff and Operations 
 
18.01 Substance Abuse 
 
 18.01.01.  Purpose of Policy.  This policy sets forth the District’s position regarding 
substance abuse and provides guidance to staff in addressing substance abuse problems.  The 
District recognizes its responsibility to maintain a safe, healthful, and productive environment 
and staff’s responsibility to perform services for the public effectively and efficiently.  The 
District will act to eliminate any substance abuse which increases the risk for accidents, 
absenteeism, substandard performance, poor morale, or damage to the District’s property or 
reputation.  Substance abuse includes the use or possession of illegal drugs, alcohol, controlled 
substances, or misuse of prescription or over-the-counter drugs which could impair staff 
members’ ability to perform their services safely, effectively, and efficiently. 
 
 18.01.02 Definitions. 
  
For purposes of this Guideline: 
 
(1)  “Illegal drugs or other controlled substances” means any drug or substance that (a) is not 
legally obtainable, or (b) is legally obtainable but has not been legally obtained, or (c) has been 
legally obtained but is being sold or distributed unlawfully. 
 
(2)  “Legal drug” means any drug, including any prescription drug or over-the-counter drug, 
that has been legally obtained and that is not unlawfully sold or distributed. 
 
(3)  “Abuse of any legal drug” means the use of any legal drug (a) for any purpose other than 
the purpose for which it was prescribed or manufactured; or (b) in a quantity, frequency, or 
manner that is contrary to the instructions or recommendations of the prescribing physician or 
manufacturer. 
 
(4)  “Possession” means that a staff member has the substance on his or her person or otherwise 
under his or her control. 
  
 18.01.03  Prohibited Conduct. 
 
A. Scope 
The prohibitions of this section apply whenever the interests of the District may be adversely 
affected, including any time a staff member is: 
(1)  on District premises; 
(2)  conducting or performing District business, regardless of location; 
(3)  operating or responsible for the operation, custody, or care of District equipment or other 
property; or 
(4)  responsible for the safety of others in connection with, or while performing, District-related 
business. 
 



 

18 
 

B. Alcohol 
The following acts are prohibited by this policy: 
(1)  the unauthorized use, possession, purchase, sale, manufacture, distribution, transportation, 
or dispensation of alcohol; or 
(2)  being under the influence of alcohol from unauthorized consumption. 
 
C. Illegal Drugs 
The following acts are prohibited by this policy: 
(1)  the use, possession, purchase, sale, manufacture, distribution, transportation, or 
dispensation of any illegal drug or other controlled substance; or 
(2)  being under the influence of any illegal drug or other controlled substance. 
 
D. Legal Drugs 
The following acts are prohibited by this policy: 
(1)  the abuse of any legal drug; 
(2)  the purchase, sale, manufacture, distribution, transportation, dispensation, or possession  
of any legal prescription drug in a manner inconsistent with law; or 
(3)  performing services for the District while impaired by the use of a legal drug whenever 
such impairment might:  
 (a)  endanger the safety of the staff member or some other person, 
 (b)  pose a risk of significant damage to Company property or equipment, or 
 (c)  substantially interfere with the work performance or the efficient operation of the  

      District’s business or equipment. 
 
 18.01.04  Violations of this Policy.  A violation of this policy will be immediately 
referred to the General Manager for review.  Disciplinary action, up to and including 
termination, is a potential consequence for a violation of this policy but will be at the discretion 
of the General Manager.   
 
18.02 Anti-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment Policy 
 

18.02.01 No Discrimination or Harassment. The District does not unlawfully 
discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, religious creed (including religious dress and 
religious grooming), sex (including pregnancy, perceived pregnancy, childbirth, breastfeeding, 
or related medical conditions), gender, gender identity (including transgender identity and 
transitioning), gender expression and sex stereotyping, national origin, ancestry, citizenship, 
age, physical or mental disability, legally protected medical condition or information 
(including genetic information), family care or medical leave status, military caregiver status, 
military status, veteran status, marital status, domestic partner status, sexual orientation, status 
as a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking, enrollment in a public assistance 
program, engaging in protected communications regarding wages, requesting a reasonable 
accommodation on the basis of disability or bona fide religious belief or practice, or any other 
basis protected by local, state, or federal laws. Consistent with the law, the District also makes 
reasonable accommodations for disabled applicants and staff; for pregnant staff who request 
an accommodation (on the advice of a health care provider), for pregnancy, childbirth, or 
related medical conditions; for staff who are victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, or 
stalking; and for applicants and staff based on their religious beliefs and practices. The District 
is committed to creating a work environment, in which all individuals are treated with respect 
and dignity.  Staff, Board members, and third parties interacting with the District have a right 



 

19 
 

to function in a professional atmosphere that promotes positive opportunities. The District 
prohibits discrimination and harassment of staff or Board members by Board members, 
managers, co-workers, or third parties with whom staff or Board members come into contact. 
Similarly, the District will not tolerate harassment or discrimination by its staff or Board 
members of non-staff members, Board members, or other third parties with whom the District’s 
staff or Board members have a business, service, or professional relationship. 
 
 18.02.02.  Harassment Defined. Harassment includes verbal, physical, and visual 
conduct that creates an intimidating, offensive, or hostile working environment or that 
interferes with work performance. Such conduct constitutes harassment when (1) submission 
to the conduct is made either an explicit or implicit condition of providing services to the 
District; (2) submission to or rejection of the conduct is used as the basis for a District decision; 
or (3) the harassment interferes with work performance or creates an intimidating, hostile, or 
offensive work environment. 
 
Harassing conduct can take many forms and may include, but is not limited to, the following 
(when based upon a protected status as noted above): slurs, jokes, statements, gestures, assault, 
impeding or blocking another’s movement or otherwise physically interfering with normal 
work; pictures, drawings, or cartoons; violating someone’s “personal space”; foul or obscene 
language; leering, stalking, staring; unwanted or offensive letters or poems, or offensive email 
or voicemail messages. 
 
Sexually harassing conduct in particular may include all of these prohibited actions, as well as 
other unwelcome conduct, such as requests for sexual favors, conversation containing sexual 
comments, and other unwelcome sexual advances. Sexually harassing conduct can be by a 
person of either the same or opposite sex. Sexually harassing conduct need not be motivated 
by sexual desire to be in violation of this policy. 

 18.02.03. Reporting and Investigating Harassing Conduct. The District 
understands that victims of harassment are often embarrassed and/or reluctant to report acts of 
harassment. However, no one should have to endure harassing conduct, and the District 
therefore encourages staff or Board members to promptly report any incidents of harassment 
so that corrective action may be taken. Any incidents of harassment should be reported to the 
General Manager. If the General Manager is the individual who is committing harassment, the 
incident should be reported to a member of the Board. The investigation will be handled in as 
confidential a manner as possible consistent with a fair, timely, and thorough investigation in 
a manner that provides all parties appropriate due process and reaches reasonable conclusions 
based on the evidence collected. 
 
 18.02.04.   Corrective Action.  The District will not tolerate retaliation against 
someone for making a good faith complaint of harassment or for cooperating in an 
investigation. If harassment or retaliation in violation of this policy is established, the District 
will take appropriate corrective action. Corrective action may include, for example, training, 
referral to counseling, or disciplinary action ranging from a verbal or written warning to 
termination of employment or other service contracts, depending on the circumstances.  
 
18.03 Smoke Free Workplace Policy 
 
 18.03.01.  Purpose.  The District would like to contribute to the health and well-being 
of all staff and third-parties that may have a business, service, or professional relationship with 



 

20 
 

the District.  Therefore, the District promotes a smoke-free environment.  The use of all 
smoking products, including vapor products and electronic cigarettes (E-cigarettes), is banned 
from the District premises except as designated in this policy.  The successful implementation 
of this policy depends upon the thoughtfulness, consideration, and cooperation of smokers and 
non-smokers alike.  All individuals on District premises share in the responsibility of adhering 
to this policy. 
 
 18.03.02.  Prohibited Activities.  Smoking is prohibited within the buildings and 
facilities of the District without exception. This includes common work areas, conference and 
meeting rooms, private offices, hallways, lunchrooms, restrooms, District vehicles, and all 
other enclosed facilities. 
 
 18.03.03. Designated Smoking Areas.  The only designated smoking areas at the 
District are outdoors at least 25 feet from any building entrances and exits, including any doors 
and windows that open. No one may smoke along any pathway or walkway leading to or from 
a designated smoking area.  Smokers must dispose of the remains of smoking products in the 
proper containers. This helps to keep a neat and clean environment for all.   
 
18.04 Investment of Public Funds 
 
 18.04.01.  Policy and Purpose.  It is the policy of the District to invest public funds in 
a manner that will provide the highest investment return with the maximum security while 
meeting the daily cash flow demands of the District and conforming to all state and local 
statutes governing the investment of public funds.  As a public entity, the District places 
particular importance on the preservation of capital and protection of District funds above other 
investment objectives.  All investments require prior approval by the Board of Directors. 
 
 18.04.02.  Scope.  This investment policy applies to all financial assets of the District 
These funds are accounted for in the District Annual Financial Report and may include: 

 
 General Fund 
 Enterprise Funds 
 Any new fund established by the District 

 
 18.04.03.  Prudence. Investments shall be made with care, skill, prudence, and 
diligence under the circumstances then prevailing, including, but not limited to, the general 
economic conditions and the anticipated needs of the District that a prudent person acting in a 
like capacity and familiarity with those matters would use in the conduct of funds of a like 
character and with like aims to safeguard the principal and maintain the liquidity needs of the 
District.   
 
 18.04.04.  Objective.  The primary objective in priority order of the District’s 
investment activities shall be: 
 

 Safety of Principal – Investments shall be undertaken in a manner that first 
seeks to preserve portfolio principal.  

 Liquidity – Investments shall be made with maturity dates that are compatible 
with cash flow requirements and that will permit easy and rapid conversion into 
cash, at all times, without a substantial loss of value. 



 

21 
 

 Return on Investment – Investments shall be undertaken to produce an 
acceptable rate of return after first consideration for principal and liquidity. 
 

 18.04.05.   Delegation of Authority.  Pursuant to the Government Code, the District 
Board delegates the authority to invest or to reinvest funds or to sell or exchange securities so 
purchased to the General Manager for a one-year period.  The General Manager is charged 
with the responsibility of carrying out the policies of the District Board and shall assume full 
responsibility for investment transactions until the delegation of authority is revoked or 
expires. 
 
 The daily cash management, investment transactions, and account reconciliations are 
the primary responsibilities of the General Manager.  The General Manager has authority to 
transfer funds between any of the accounts that have been established by the District in order 
to accomplish the purpose and objective of this policy.  The General Manager shall report any 
transfer of funds at the next regular Board meeting during the General Manager or Financial 
report.  These activities are also carried out by other members of the District’s staff under the 
direction of the General Manager.  The General Manager shall establish procedures for the 
operation consistent with this investment policy. 
 
 The General Manager and authorized individuals acting in accordance with written 
procedures, the investment policy, and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of personal 
responsibility for an individual security’s credit risk or market price changes, provided 
deviations from expectations are reported in a timely fashion and appropriate action is taken 
to control adverse developments. 
 
 18.04.06.  Ethics and Conflicts of Interest.  District staff involved in the investment 
process shall refrain from personal business activities that could conflict with proper execution 
of the investment program or that could impair their ability to make impartial decisions.  
District staff involved in the investment process shall abide by the District’s Conflict of Interest 
Code, the provisions of California Government Code Section 1090 et seq., and the California 
Political Reform Act, California Government Code Section 81000 et seq. 
 
 18.04.07.  Permitted Investments.  California Government Code Sections 53601, 
53635, and 16429.1 govern the investments permitted for purchase by the District.  Within the 
investments permitted by the Code, the District seeks to further restrict eligible investments to 
the investments listed below. 
 
Percentage limitations, where indicated, apply at the time of the purchase.  Rating 
requirements, where indicated, apply at the time of purchase.  In the event a security held by 
the District is subject to a rating change that brings it below the minimum specified rating 
requirement, the General Manager shall notify the District Board of the change.  The course of 
action to be followed will then be decided on a case-by-case basis, considering such factors as 
the reason for the rate drop, prognosis for recovery or further rate drops, and the market price 
of the security.  Investment maturities shall be based on review of cash flow forecasts.  
Maturities will be scheduled so as to permit the District to meet all projected obligations. 
 
No investment shall be made in any security, other than a security underlying a repurchase or 
reverse repurchase agreement, that at the time of the investment has a term remaining to 
maturity in excess of five years unless the District Board of Directors has granted express 
authority to make that investment no less than three months prior to the investment. 



 

22 
 

18.04.08.  Eligible Investments.  
 

 State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (“LAIF”) pursuant to Gov’t 
Code § 16429.1.  The District may invest in LAIF.  A maximum of $50 million 
may be invested in this category. 
 

 California Asset Management Trust.  The District may invest in the shares in 
the California Asset Management Trust, so long as the portfolio is rated among 
the top two rating categories by one of the nationally recognized rating 
agencies.  A maximum of $50 million may be invested in this category, net of 
bond proceeds. 
 

 U.S. Treasury Obligations.  United States Treasury notes, bonds, bills, or 
certificates of indebtedness, or those for which the faith and credit of the United 
States are pledged for the payment of principal and interest. 
 

 Negotiable Certificates of Deposit.  Negotiable certificates of deposit issued by 
a nationally or state-chartered bank or a state or federal savings and loan 
association or by a state licensed branch of a foreign bank, provided that the 
senior debt obligations of the issuing institution are rated “AA” or better by 
Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s.  Investments in negotiable certificates of 
deposit are limited to 30% of the portfolio. 
 

 Banker’s Acceptances.  Banker’s acceptances issued by domestic or foreign 
banks which are eligible for purchase by the Federal Reserve System.  
Purchases of banker’s acceptances may not exceed 180 days maturity.  Eligible 
banker’s acceptances are restricted to issuing financial institutions with short-
term paper rated in the highest category by one or more nationally recognized 
rating services.  Investments in banker’s acceptances are further limited to 40% 
of the portfolio with no more than 30% of surplus invested in the banker’s 
acceptances of any one commercial bank. 
 

 Federal Agency Securities.  Federal agency or United States government-
sponsored enterprise obligations, participations, or other instruments, including 
those issued by or fully guaranteed as to principal and interest by federal 
agencies or United States government-sponsored enterprises. 
 

 Municipal Obligations: Bonds, notes, warrants, or other evidences of 
indebtedness of the State of California or of any local agency within the State 
of California, including bonds. 
 

 Money Market Funds.  Shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified 
management companies that are money market funds registered with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) under the Investment Company 
Act of 1940 (15 U.S.C., Sec. 80a-1, et seq.). 

 
o The District may invest in shares of beneficial interest issued by a 

company that shall have met either of the following criteria: 



 

23 
 

1. attained the highest ranking or the highest letter and numerical 
rating provided by not less than two nationally recognized rating 
services, (or) 
 

2. retained an investment advisor registered or exempt from 
registration with the SEC with not less than five years’ experience 
in managing money market mutual funds with assets under 
management in excess of five hundred million dollars 
($500,000,000). 

 
o The purchase price of shares of beneficial interest purchased pursuant 

to this subdivision shall not include any commission that the companies 
may charge.  Investments in Money Market Funds are limited to 20% 
of the portfolio. 
 

 Local Agency Bonds.  Bonds, including Certificates of Participation, notes or 
evidences of indebtedness issued by any state, municipality, or local agency 
whether payable from any fund of such entity or from special revenues pledged 
for such payment. 

 
 18.04.09.  Ineligible Investments.  As provided in California Government Code 
section 53601.6, the District shall not invest any funds in inverse floaters, range notes, 
mortgage derived interest-only strips, or in any security that could result in zero interest accrual 
if held to maturity.  The purchase of any security not listed above but permitted by the 
California Government Code is prohibited unless the District Board approves the investment 
specifically. 
 
 18.04.10.  Safekeeping.  All securities purchased may be delivered against payment 
and held in safekeeping pursuant to a safekeeping agreement.  All financial institutions shall 
be instructed to mail confirmations and safekeeping receipts directly to the General Manager. 
 
 18.04.11. Performance Standards.  An annual appraisal of the investment portfolio 
shall be conducted  to  evaluate  the  effectiveness of  the  District’s  investment  program.  The 
purpose of this review, in addition to evaluation of performance, is to provide the platform for 
recommendations of change and improvements to the portfolio to the Board. 
 
 18.04.12. Reporting Requirements. Each month the Finance Officer shall prepare and 
submit a report of investment transactions to the Board of Directors.  This report will be 
sufficiently detailed to provide information for investment evaluation.  
 
 18.04.13.  Annual Review of Investment Policy.  The investment policy shall be 
adopted by resolution of the District Board on, at minimum, an annual basis.  The investment 
policy shall be reviewed at least annually to ensure its consistency with the overall objections 
of preservation of principal, liquidity, yield, and its relevance to current law and financial and 
economic trends.  Any amendments to the policy shall be approved by the District Board. 
 
18.05 Disposal of Surplus Equipment/Property. 
 
 18.05.01. Equipment.   
 



 

24 
 

  A. Policy and Procedure.  The General Manager, in conjunction with the 
Office Manager and the Plant Superintendent, shall be responsible for identifying obsolete/ 
surplus materials, goods, and equipment (“Surplus Equipment”).  Once Surplus Equipment is 
identified by the General Manager, it shall be presented to the Board of Directors at a meeting.  
The Board of Directors shall declare the obsolete/surplus materials, goods, and equipment as 
Surplus Equipment. 
 
  B. Definitions.   
 
Disposal – Sell, discard, destroy, donate, or otherwise remove from District ownership. 
 
Equipment – The term “equipment” as used in this procedure consists of material, goods, 
furniture, vehicles, computers, and other substantive objects that had value at the time of 
purchase or acquisition and are owned by the District. 
 
Near Relative – Near relative is defined as a spouse or significant other, father, mother, 
daughter, son, sister, brother, step-relative, or in-law in the same relationships.  
 
Obsolete Material, Goods, and Equipment – Material, goods, and equipment no longer 
usable in the service for which they were purchased and that cannot be used safely or 
economically for any other purpose. 
 
Surplus Material, Goods, and Equipment – That portion of material, goods, and equipment 
that is in excess of operating, maintenance, repair, or spare parts requirements, or any item not 
having a use within the foreseeable future. 
 
  C. Determination of When to Dispose of Items.  As a general rule, when 
the cost of repairing an item becomes more than what an item is worth, the item should be 
disposed of.  Items that are obsolete or surplus should be disposed of using one of the methods 
below.  
 
  D.  Disposal Methods.   
    
Resell – Surplus Equipment or working equipment that cannot be economically repaired or put 
back into service will be sold.  The District shall publish notice of the sale noting 
location/hours/days the equipment can be seen and a deadline for submission of sealed bids. 
The publication shall note that the equipment is sold “as is” and that the District reserves the 
right to reject any or all bids.  The sealed bids are opened at the next regular Board meeting 
and action by the Board shall be taken to accept or reject bids.  Bidders shall be notified of the 
Board’s action. 

 
Disposal or Recycling – If it is determined that equipment is obsolete or cannot meet any of 
the above categories, the General Manager will dispose of or recycle the equipment in 
compliance with all state and federal laws. 
 
Donation – Giving equipment that has little or no value to the District to nonprofit 
organizations such as school districts.  Such donations would be done to forgo the cost of 
disposal of the equipment. 
 



 

25 
 

  E.  Limitations of Transfers to Directors, Staff, or Near Relatives.  No 
member of the Board of Directors, staff member, or their near relatives may buy or receive 
equipment from the District pursuant to this policy. 
    
 18.05.02. Real Property.   
 
  A. Policy.  The General Manager shall be responsible for identifying real 
property that is no longer of value to the District and should be disposed of.  Once real property 
is identified by the General Manager as surplus, it shall be presented to the Board of Directors 
at a meeting.  The Board of Directors shall declare the real property surplus and authorize staff 
to obtain an appraisal of the real property.   
 
  B. Procedure.  The General Manager shall obtain an appraisal and provide 
notice to public agencies in the manner prescribed by Government Code § 54220.  In the event 
that no public agency desires the real property, the District shall publish a notice inviting bids.  
Notices inviting bids shall include a legal description of the subject property, a vicinity map 
showing the general location of the subject property, and a statement that transfer of the surplus 
real property shall be by quitclaim deed.  Sealed bids shall be submitted to the General Manager 
and shall be opened at the next regular Board meeting.  The notice shall also include that the 
District reserves the right to reject any or all bids.  The sealed bids are opened at the next 
regular Board meeting and action by the Board shall be taken to accept or reject bids.  Bidders 
shall be notified of the Board’s action. 
 
18.06 Guidelines for Accepting and Providing Gifts, Entertainment, and Services.   
 
 18.06.01     Policy.  This policy establishes the procedures for the receipt of gifts offered 
to the District, its Board members, and/or its staff.  District staff is prohibited from accepting, 
or providing to, individuals or companies doing or seeking to do business with the District, 
gifts, entertainment, services, or other benefits unless the transaction meets all the following 
guidelines: (a) is customary, gives no appearance of impropriety, and does not have more than 
a nominal value; (b) does not impose any sense of obligation on either the giver or the receiver; 
(c) does not result in any kind of special or favored treatment; (d) cannot be viewed as 
extravagant, excessive, or too frequent considering all the circumstances, including the ability 
of the recipient to reciprocate at District expense; and (e) is given and received with no effort 
to conceal the full facts by either the giver or receiver.  Any individual or entity that desires to 
make a donation to the District shall be referred to the General Manager.  The General Manager 
shall consult with District Counsel and the District’s accounting professional prior to accepting 
any donations on behalf of the District. 
 
18.07 Budget Preparation.   
 
The annual budget proposal is prepared by the General Manager in conjunction with the 
Chairperson of the Budget/Finance Committee.  The Budget/Finance Committee shall meet 
with the General Manager and review the annual budget proposal at its meeting in April of 
each year.  The annual budget proposal shall be reviewed and amended by the Budget/Finance 
Committee.  The annual budget proposal shall be presented to the Board of Directors for review 
and approval no later than its meeting in June of each year. 
 
 
 



 

26 
 

18.08 Expense Authorization. 
 
 18.08.01.  Expenditures.  All expenditures and purchases made by the District shall 
be authorized in the District’s annual budget and by the General Manager.  Any commitment 
of District funds, expenditures, and/or purchases in the amount of $5,000 or greater require 
prior authorization/approval by the Board of Directors in conformance with the Procurement 
Policy.  Expenditures in the amount of $4,999 or less require authorization by the General 
Manager. 
 
 18.08.02.  Petty Cash.  This policy seeks to ensure that petty cash is managed 
appropriately and that staff members are not financially disadvantaged as a result of incurring 
minor work-related expenses.  The amount of petty cash shall be as determined by the General 
Manager but, in general, should not exceed $150.00.  The General Manager shall ensure that 
petty cash is used to cover only those expense reimbursements for which it is not feasible, or 
for which it is unreasonably inconvenient, to use normal purchasing methods.  Any expense 
that is predictable, regular, or significant should be dealt with through normal accounting 
procedures.  All expenses incurred using petty cash funds must be substantiated by acceptable 
supporting documentation such as receipts and invoices.  The petty cash shall be kept in a 
secure (locked) location and the key held securely.  The General Manager may delegate petty 
cash duties to the Office Manager. 
 
19.00  Procurement Policy. 
 
 19.01. Purpose.  The purpose of this policy is to provide direction on how to efficiently 
and legally obtain suitable quality services, supplies, materials, and labor at the lowest possible 
cost.  
 
 19.02. Definitions.  For the purposes of this Policy, the term "purchasing" refers 
collectively to contracting or procurement of services, supplies, materials, or labor, including 
Capital Improvements. 
 
19.03. Procurement Procedures. 
 

Sections A, B, and C are governed by the following conditions: 
 
The contract shall be awarded to the lowest responsible, responsive bidder, in 
accordance with the Public Contract Code. Written entries documenting that the 
required bidding process has been followed shall be entered in the project file, and a 
copy of the Board Report and contract shall be saved in the District files. Following 
Board approval, the General Manager and one Board member shall then execute the 
contract.  

 
A. Solicitation of Formal, Advertised Bids or Requests for Proposals (RFP) for 

Expenditures Exceeding $50,000 
 

When any expenditure is expected to exceed $50,000, the District shall publish a 
notice inviting bids or requests for proposals a minimum of one week prior to the time 
of receiving bids in a general circulation newspaper published within San Luis Obispo 
County. This type of formal bidding process typically includes the issuance of written 
plans and/or specifications describing the goods or services to be provided and the 



 

27 
 

receipt of written bids from the vendors or contractors involved. The General 
Manager, or a designated staff member, shall solicit a minimum of three (3) vendors 
or contractors to bid on the project. There may be special circumstances, however, 
when fewer than three (3) vendors are available to submit a proposal or fewer than 
three (3) vendors submit proposals. In such cases, the General Manager shall justify 
the reason(s) three vendors could not be solicited with written documentation retained 
in the project file.  

 
B. Solicitation of Three Written Bids or Requests for Proposals for Expenditures 

Exceeding $10,000 but Not Exceeding $50,000 
 

When any expenditure is expected to exceed $10,000, but not exceed $50,000, the 
General Manager, or said designee, shall solicit a minimum of three (3) vendors or 
contractors to submit written bids or proposals. Written entries documenting that three 
written proposals were solicited shall be noted by the General Manager in the project 
file.  There may be special circumstances, however, when fewer than three (3) vendors 
are available to submit a proposal or fewer than three (3) vendors submit proposals. In 
such cases, the General Manager shall justify the reason(s) three vendors could not be 
solicited with written documentation retained in the project file.   
 
1. Alternative Selection Procedure for Expenditures Exceeding $10,000 
 
When the District is seeking a unique solution to a problem or situation that cannot 
necessarily be resolved by the lowest bidder (i.e. when the methods, approaches, and 
procedures to be used in performing the work are of primary importance), a “Point 
Count/High Score” method of selecting a proposal may be utilized.  Before soliciting 
proposals, the District must determine the method of evaluation and include the 
appropriate information in the request for proposal.  If a “Point Count/High Score” 
method will be used, a comprehensive evaluation plan must be developed and 
finalized.  All rating and scoring factors that are to be considered must be included, 
criteria for considering costs must be developed, and the evaluation plan must provide 
for a fair and equitable evaluation of all proposals.  Scoring factors must take into 
consideration cost and that factor cannot be less than 30% of the total points available.  
Proposals received under this method shall first be evaluated to determine whether 
they were received in time and in the manner prescribed to determine which ones meet 
the format requirements specified in the request for proposal.  Those proposals that 
meet the format requirements shall then be submitted to an evaluation committee 
which shall be comprised of the General Manager and one Board member.  The 
evaluation committee will evaluate and score the proposals using the methods 
specified in the request for proposal.  The contract must be awarded to the responsible, 
responsive proposal given the highest score by the evaluation committee. 
 
Note:  Invitation for Bids are typically used to obtain simple, common, or routine 
services that may require personal or mechanical skills (i.e. little discretion is used in 
performing the work).  Requests for Proposals are used to obtain complex services in 
which professional expertise is needed and may vary.  Requests for Proposals that will 
utilize the alternative selection procedure should be used only to obtain very complex 
and/or unique services in which professional expertise and methods vary greatly or 
creative/innovative approaches are needed.  (i.e. public relations, advertising, complex 
research projects). 



 

28 
 

C. Solicitation of Three Verbal Quotes for Expenditures Exceeding $5,000 but Not 
Exceeding $10,000 

 
When any expenditure is expected to exceed $5,000 but not exceed $10,000, the 
General Manager, or said designee, shall solicit a minimum of three (3) verbal quotes 
to provide the goods or services. Written entries documenting that three verbal quotes 
were solicited shall be made in the project file. 
 

D. Expenditures Not Exceeding $5,000 
 

The General Manager, or said designee, shall obtain competitive cost information, 
whenever reasonably feasible, for any District purchase even though formal cost 
quotations are not required for goods or services costing $5,000 or less. The General 
Manager shall approve the payment. 

 
19.04. Exceptions to Standard Purchasing Procedures. 
 

A. Public Projects.   
 
On June 11, 2014, the District passed Resolution No. 14-363 adopting the Uniform 
Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures (California Public Contract Code § 
22000 et seq.) in the contracting for construction of “public projects.”  The District is 
therefore subject to the uniform construction cost account procedures set forth in Pub. 
Con. Code § 22000 et seq. and incorporates the procedures set forth therein to this 
policy manual.   “Public project” means any of the following: (1) construction, 
reconstruction, erection, alteration, renovation, improvement, demolition, and repair 
work involving any publicly owned, leased, or operated facility; (2) painting or 
repainting of any publicly owned, leased, or operated facility.   
 

B. Emergency Conditions 
 

An emergency is defined as a breakdown in machinery and/or equipment resulting in 
the inability of the District to provide essential services or a threat to public health, 
safety, or welfare, including, but not limited to, threatened damage to natural resources 
or an imminent threat of injury or damage to any person or property.  
 
In the case of such an emergency, the formal RFP process is suspended. The General 
Manager, or said designee, shall secure, in the open market at the lowest obtainable 
price, any services, supplies, material, or labor required to respond to the emergency. 
The Purchase Order should indicate "Emergency Conditions" with written 
documentation of the nature of the emergency and lowest obtainable price information. 
The General Manager shall consult with two Board members prior to taking significant 
action.  

 
In the case of a natural disaster or for civil defense, nothing contained in this Policy 
shall limit the authority of the General Manager to make purchases and take necessary 
emergency steps.   

 
 
 



 

29 
 

C. Limited Availability/Sole Source 
 

Occasionally, necessary supplies, material, equipment, or services are of a unique type, 
are of a proprietary nature, or are otherwise of such a specific design or construction, 
or are specifically necessary for purposes of maintaining cost-effective system 
consistency so as to be available from only one source. The General Manager may 
dispense with the requirement of competitive bids and recommend negotiating a fair 
price and making the purchase from a sole source if, after reasonable efforts by District 
staff to find alternative suppliers, there exists only a single source. Alternatively, if 
reasonable efforts by District staff to identify three (3) vendors or contractors as 
applicable under this policy are unsuccessful, the General Manager may authorize a 
limited availability bidding process with fewer than three (3) vendors or contractors. 
The basis for the sole source recommendation shall be documented in writing on the 
contract or purchase order and approved, in advance, by the Board for purchases 
exceeding $10,000 and the General Manager, or other authorized District staff, under 
this policy for purchases not exceeding $10,000. 

 
D. Cooperative Purchasing 

 
The District shall have the authority to join in cooperative purchasing agreements with 
other public agencies (e.g. the State of California or other counties, cities, or special 
districts) to purchase goods or services at a price established by that agency through a 
competitive bidding process consistent with California public bidding requirements. 
The Board may authorize participation in cooperative purchasing agreements. 
 

E. Professional Consultant Services 
 

1. Definition and Restrictions 
 

Professional consultant services are of a technical nature and, due to the type of  
services to be provided, do not readily fall within the "low bid" competitive bidding 
process. California Government Code Section 4525 et. seq. requires that selection 
of professional consultants in the categories of architects, landscape architects, 
engineers, surveyors, and environmental consulting be made on the basis of 
demonstrated competence and the professional qualifications necessary for the 
satisfactory performance of the required services. Professional consultants should 
be individually selected for a specific project or problem with the objective of 
selecting the most qualified consultant at a price that is fair and reasonable.  
Professional service agreements shall not be split into smaller units, nor shall 
contract amendments be used, for the purpose of circumvention of the expenditure 
limits of this Policy. 
 
As used in this Policy, "professional consultant service agreement" shall mean and 
include all professional services provided by the same consultant that are provided 
as part of or related to the same project or program for which the consultant is being 
retained. Consultants who are retained to provide services on an ongoing basis, such 
as geotechnical peer reviews of District projects, shall be retained by means of an 
annual service agreement unless an agreement providing for renewal or extension 
of services has been approved. 

 



 

30 
 

a. For selection of architects, landscape architects, engineers, surveyors, and 
environmental consultants, the following procedures shall apply unless the 
services needed from such consultants are of a technical nature or involve  
professional judgment.   
 
Cost is not to be included in the Request for Proposal (RFP). Only after a firm 
is selected, is compensation negotiated. The scope of work is the basis for 
negotiations for payment. If the parties cannot agree on fair compensation, 
negotiations may be formally terminated with the firm considered most 
qualified and may be commenced with the second highest-rated firm.  Such 
procedure may be repeated until an agreement is reached with a qualified firm.  
 
Alternatively, a fee or cost estimate can be requested at the time of the RFP by 
requiring it to be provided in a separate, sealed envelope. The fee estimate will 
only be opened after selecting the successful consulting firm.  
 

b. For consultants who do not fall under the qualifications-based selection method 
described above, or where the services needed from the vendors listed above 
are of a technical nature and involve professional judgment, cost can be 
included in the RFQ/RFP and used in ranking the consultants for selection. 
Examples of such consultants include, but are not limited to:  training, safety, 
recruitment, personnel services, economic analysis, city and regional planning, 
property appraisals/analysis, property acquisition, title insurance, facilitators, 
legal services, financial services, and data processing. 

 
2. Selection Procedures for Professional Services in Excess of $50,000 

 
When the cost for professional services is expected to be in excess of $50,000, the 
District shall prepare a Request for Proposal (RFP) which should request the 
professional's qualifications, relevant experience, described approach, staffing, and 
support. The proposal should outline the terms, conditions, and specifications of 
the services required by the District.   District staff will review the proposals 
received, rank the consultants based upon the following criteria, and invite the most 
qualified firms for interviews: 
 
a. ability of the consultants to perform the specific tasks outlined in the RFP, 
b. qualifications of the specific individuals who will work on the project, 
c. quantity and quality of time key personnel will be involved in their respective 

portions of the project, 
d. reasonableness of the fee requested to do the work; comparability of fee to 

similar services offered by other qualified consultants (except where fee is to 
be negotiated later), 

e. demonstrated record of success by the consultant on work previously performed 
for the District or for other public agencies or enterprises, 

f. the specific method and techniques to be employed by the consultant on the 
project or problem, 

g. ability of the consultant to provide appropriate insurance in adequate amounts, 
including errors and omissions if applicable, and 

h. responsiveness to the RFP. 
 



 

31 
 

The report to the Board shall summarize the basis for staff’s consultant selection 
recommendation and the ranking of the consultants based upon these criteria.  
Following Board approval, the General Manager and one Board member shall then 
execute the contract. 

 
3. Selection Procedures for Professional Services in Excess of $10,000 but Not 

Exceeding $50,000 
 

District staff shall solicit written proposals from a minimum of three (3) qualified 
consultants. A formal RFP is not required. There may be special circumstances, 
however, when fewer than three (3) vendors are available to submit a proposal or 
fewer than three (3) vendors submit proposals. In such cases, the General Manager 
shall justify the reason(s) three (3) vendors could not be solicited with written 
documentation retained in the project file.   
 
The selection shall be based upon the criteria noted in Section 2 above.  The General 
Manager, or said designee, may approve the selection and execute the agreement. 
The ranking and selection recommendation, based upon these criteria and the 
written proposal information, shall be documented in the project file.  Following 
Board approval, the General Manager shall then execute the contract. 

 
4. Selection Procedures for Professional Services in Excess of $5,000 Not 

Exceeding $10,000 
 

Formal RFP’s are not required for professional services in excess of $5,000 and not 
exceeding $10,000.  District staff may select a consultant from a pre-qualified 
consultant file if available. District staff shall contact at least three (3) qualified 
consultants and request an informal written proposal or verbal proposal.  There may 
be special circumstances, however, when fewer than three (3) vendors are available 
to submit a proposal or fewer than three (3) vendors submit proposals. In such 
cases, the General Manager shall justify the reason(s) three vendors could not be 
solicited with written documentation retained in the project file.   
 
The selection shall be based upon the criteria noted in Section 2 above. Notations 
documenting the proposals and reasons for selection shall be made in the project 
file.  Following Board approval, the General Manager shall then execute the 
agreement. 
  

5. Selection Procedure for Professional Services Not Exceeding $5,000 
 

Formal RFP’s are not required for professional services $5,000 or under. District 
staff may select a consultant from a prequalified consultant file if available. The 
General Manager shall approve the selection. 

 
6. Renewal of Contracts with Professional Consultants 

 
The District may, after following required consultant selection procedures, enter 
into consultant agreements which contain provisions authorizing their extension or 
renewal. Recommendations to extend or renew an existing contract with a 
professional consultant should include a written evaluation of the work performed 



 

32 
 

by the consultant as well as a determination that the rationale for providing for the 
renewal option in the existing contract remains valid and that the fees being charged 
are comparable to fees for similar services offered by other consultants at the time 
of renewal or extension.  If the total amount of the contract renewal does not exceed 
$5,000, the General Manager, or said designee, may execute a contract amendment 
to formalize the renewal. If the total amount of the original agreement and any 
amendments exceed $5,000, prior Board approval must be obtained. 

 
7. Conflict of Law 

 
These procedures are not applicable where superseded by local, state, or federal 
law; where the terms of grant funding provide for the use of other consultant 
selection procedures; or where the District is obligated to select consultants through 
the use of different procedures, such as the requirements of an insurance or self-
insurance program. 

 
8. Special Circumstances 

 
These professional consultant selection procedures are not applicable when three 
(3) qualified professional service firms or individuals are unavailable or if it is 
appropriate and in the best interest of the District under the specific circumstances 
of the project at issue to limit the number of consultants solicited. Examples of such 
specific circumstances may include the following: the need to take immediate 
action on a project precludes the District's ability to follow these procedures; the 
absence of any fiscal or competitive advantage in following these procedures; only 
one consultant is known to be available and capable of providing needed services 
within the required time; the services to be provided are so unique that only one 
known consultant is qualified and available to perform them; or the terms of a legal 
mandate or negotiated agreement require the use of a particular consultant. The 
basis for such action shall be documented in writing and noted in the contract and 
approved by the General Manager. When Board approval is required, the 
documented basis for such action shall be included in the report to the Board. 

 
9. Prequalified Consultant File 

 
District staff may maintain a current file of consultants in their appropriate 
professional services categories after the selection procedures have been followed 
in this policy and a determination made that a consultant is qualified and competent. 
District staff may maintain this “prequalified consultant” file for a period of two 
(2) years from determination of the qualification of such consultant. The District 
may select a prequalified consultant from this file for services. 
 

F. Open Purchase Orders for Routine and Repetitive Supplies and Services 
 
Open purchase orders may be entered into with vendors who are expected to supply 
routine services, supplies, materials, or labor to the District on a regular basis 
throughout the fiscal year (such as gasoline, disking, road maintenance, vehicle 
maintenance, printing, office supplies, office machinery maintenance, computers, 
ergonomic equipment, field hardware, resource management supplies). Such open 
purchase orders should normally be closed at the conclusion of each fiscal year. 



 

33 
 

1. Competitive Bidding Procedures 
 

Vendors of repetitive supplies and services shall be selected through the 
competitive procedures set out above, based upon the anticipated or budgeted 
cumulative cost of the supply or service. When competitive bidding procedures 
cannot feasibly be done due to the nature of the product to be purchased, a 
comparison of vendors’ prices on representative sample items will be made and 
staff will provide written documentation of the price quotations used to select the 
vendor with the lowest cost. In the event that the vendor selected for repetitive 
supplies and services ceases to provide competitive costs for supplies or adequate 
services during the fiscal year, the District may replace that vendor with the next 
lowest cost vendor who participated in the cost comparison.  

 
2. Multi-year Contracts 

 
Multi-year contracts shall be selected through the competitive procedures set out 
above, based upon the anticipated or budgeted cumulative cost of the supply or 
service over the course of the contract. Multi-year contracts can be let only when it 
is documented that it is appropriate and necessary to secure the best pricing or to 
assure continuity of service. Whenever feasible, multi-year contracts for service or 
supplies shall provide that the option to renew or extend the contract is at the 
District’s sole discretion. 

 
 19.05 General Provisions.  
 

A. Conflict of Interest 
 

No District staff member or elected official shall be financially interested, directly or 
indirectly, in any purchase, contract, sale, or transaction to which the District is a party 
and that comes before said official or staff member for recommendation or action. Any 
purchase, contract, sale, or transaction in which any staff or official is financially 
interested shall become void at the election of the District. No staff member or elected 
official shall realize any personal gain from any purchase, contract, sale, or transaction 
involving the District. When any staff member is in doubt as to whether a conflict of 
interest exists, that staff member shall consult with the District Counsel, and, if 
necessary, alternative actions may be taken to facilitate the purchase. 

 
B. Purchase of Recycled Products 

 
District staff shall purchase recycled products whenever such products are available at 
equal cost to non-recycled products and when suitability and quality are equal. When 
recycled products are used, the supplier shall label the products to indicate that they 
contain recycled materials and specify the minimum percentage of recycled material in 
the products.  

 
C. Violations of This Policy 

 
Staff members are subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination for 
violation of this Policy. 

 



 

34 
 

SECTION 20.00 Conflict of Interest Policy 
 
Section 20.01.  Conflict of Interest Code.   
 
 The Political Reform Act, Government Code Section 81000 requires local agencies to 
adopt and promulgate Conflicts of Interest Codes.  The District approved Resolution 18-XXX, 
attached here as Appendix 1, which adopted the conflict of interest regulations included in 2 
Cal. Code of Regs. §18730 (the “Resolution.”)  The Resolution and the regulations of 2 Cal. 
Code of Regs. 18730, reproduced below, constitute the Conflict of Interest Code and policies 
for the District. 
 
Conflict of Interest Regulations 
 
A. Incorporation of this Regulation – Adoption of Conflict of Interest Code 
 
 (a) Incorporation by reference of the terms of this regulation along with the designation 
of employees and the formulation of disclosure categories in the Exhibit referred to below 
constitute the adoption and promulgation of a conflict of interest code within the meaning of 
Section 87300 or the amendment of a conflict of interest code within the meaning of Section 
87306 if the terms of this regulation are substituted for terms of a conflict of interest code 
already in effect. A code so amended or adopted and promulgated requires the reporting of 
reportable items in a manner substantially equivalent to the requirements of article 2 of chapter 
7 of the Political Reform Act, Sections 81000, et seq. The requirements of a conflict of interest 
code are in addition to other requirements of the Political Reform Act, such as the general 
prohibition against conflicts of interest contained in Section 87100, and to other state or local 
laws pertaining to conflicts of interest. 
 
B. Conflict of Interest Code 
 
 (b) The terms of a conflict of interest code amended or adopted and promulgated 
pursuant to this regulation are as follows: 
 
  (1) Section 1. Definitions.  The definitions contained in the Political Reform 
Act of 1974, regulations of the Fair Political Practices Commission (Regulations 18110, et 
seq.), and any amendments to the Act or regulations, are incorporated by reference into this 
conflict of interest code. 
  (2) Section 2. Designated Employees.  The persons holding positions listed in 
the Exhibit are designated employees. It has been determined that these persons make or 
participate in the making of decisions which may foreseeably have a material effect on 
economic interests. 
  (3) Section 3. Disclosure Categories.  This code does not establish any 
disclosure obligation for those designated employees who are also specified in Section 87200 
if they are designated in this code in that same capacity or if the geographical jurisdiction of 
this agency is the same as or is wholly included within the jurisdiction in which those persons 
must report their economic interests pursuant to article 2 of chapter 7 of the Political Reform 
Act, Sections 87200, et seq. 
 
  In addition, this code does not establish any disclosure obligation for any 
designated employees who are designated in a conflict of interest code for another agency, if 
all of the following apply: 



 

35 
 

  (A) The geographical jurisdiction of this agency is the same as or is wholly included 
within the jurisdiction of the other agency; 
  (B) The disclosure assigned in the code of the other agency is the same as that required 
under article 2 of chapter 7 of the Political Reform Act, Section 87200; and 

  (C) The filing officer is the same for both agencies. Such persons are covered by this 
code for disqualification purposes only. With respect to all other designated employees, the 
disclosure categories set forth in the Exhibit specify which kinds of economic interests are 
reportable. Such a designated employee shall disclose in his or her statement of economic 
interests those economic interests he or she has which are of the kind described in the disclosure 
categories to which he or she is assigned in the Exhibit. It has been determined that the economic 
interests set forth in a designated employee's disclosure categories are the kinds of economic 
interests which he or she foreseeably can affect materially through the conduct of his or her 
office. 

  (4) Section 4. Statements of Economic Interests: Place of Filing.  The code 
reviewing body shall instruct all designated employees within its code to file statements of 
economic interests with the agency or with the code reviewing body, as provided by the code 
reviewing body in the agency's conflict of interest code.2 
  (5) Section 5. Statements of Economic Interests: Time of Filing. 
 (A) Initial Statements. All designated employees employed by the agency on the 
effective date of this code, as originally adopted, promulgated and approved by the code 
reviewing body, shall file statements within 30 days after the effective date of this code. 
Thereafter, each person already in a position when it is designated by an amendment to this 
code shall file an initial statement within 30 days after the effective date of the amendment. 
 (B) Assuming Office Statements. All persons assuming designated positions after the 
effective date of this code shall file statements within 30 days after assuming the designated 
positions, or if subject to State Senate confirmation, 30 days after being nominated or 
appointed. 
 (C) Annual Statements. All designated employees shall file statements no later than 
April 1. If a person reports for military service as defined in the Servicemember's Civil Relief 
Act, the deadline for the annual statement of economic interests is 30 days following his or her 
return to office, provided the person, or someone authorized to represent the person's interests, 
notifies the filing officer in writing prior to the applicable filing deadline that he or she is 
subject to that federal statute and is unable to meet the applicable deadline, and provides the 
filing officer verification of his or her military status. 
 (D) Leaving Office Statements. All persons who leave designated positions shall file 
statements within 30 days after leaving office. 
 (5.5) Section 5.5. Statements for Persons Who Resign Prior to Assuming Office. Any 
person who resigns within 12 months of initial appointment, or within 30 days of the date of 
notice provided by the filing officer to file an assuming office statement, is not deemed to have 
assumed office or left office, provided he or she did not make or participate in the making of, 
or use his or her position to influence any decision and did not receive or become entitled to 
receive any form of payment as a result of his or her appointment. Such persons shall not file 
either an assuming or leaving office statement. 
 (A) Any person who resigns a position within 30 days of the date of a notice from the 
filing officer shall do both of the following: 
  (1) File a written resignation with the appointing power; and 
  (2) File a written statement with the filing officer declaring under penalty of 
perjury that during the period between appointment and resignation he or she did not make, 
participate in the making, or use the position to influence any decision of the agency or receive, 
or become entitled to receive, any form of payment by virtue of being appointed to the position. 



 

36 
 

  (6) Section 6. Contents of and Period Covered by Statements of Economic 
Interests. 
 (A) Contents of Initial Statements.  Initial statements shall disclose any reportable 
investments, interests in real property and business positions held on the effective date of the 
code and income received during the 12 months prior to the effective date of the code. 
 (B) Contents of Assuming Office Statements.  Assuming office statements shall 
disclose any reportable investments, interests in real property and business positions held on 
the date of assuming office or, if subject to State Senate confirmation or  
appointment, on the date of nomination, and income received during the 12 months prior to 
the date of assuming office or the date of being appointed or nominated, respectively. 
 (C) Contents of Annual Statements. Annual statements shall disclose any reportable 
investments, interests in real property, income and business positions held or received during 
the previous calendar year provided, however, that the period covered by an employee's first 
annual statement shall begin on the effective date of the code or the date of assuming office 
whichever is later, or for a board or commission member subject to Section 87302.6, the day 
after the closing date of the most recent statement filed by the member pursuant to Regulation 
18754. 
 (D) Contents of Leaving Office Statements.  Leaving office statements shall disclose 
reportable investments, interests in real property, income and business positions held or 
received during the period between the closing date of the last statement filed and the date of 
leaving office. 
  (7) Section 7. Manner of Reporting.  Statements of economic interests shall be 
made on forms prescribed by the Fair Political Practices Commission and supplied by the 
agency, and shall contain the following information: 
 (A) Investment and Real Property Disclosure.  When an investment or an interest in 
real property3 is required to be reported,4 the statement shall contain the following: 
    1. A statement of the nature of the investment or interest; 
    2. The name of the business entity in which each investment is 
held, and a general description of the business activity in which the business entity is engaged; 
    3. The address or other precise location of the real property; 
    4. A statement whether the fair market value of the investment 
or interest in real property equals or exceeds $2,000, exceeds $10,000, exceeds $100,000, or 
exceeds $1,000,000. 
 (B) Personal Income Disclosure. When personal income is required to be reported,5 
the statement shall contain: 
    1. The name and address of each source of income aggregating 
$500 or more in value, or $50 or more in value if the income was a gift, and a general 
description of the business activity, if any, of each source; 
    2. A statement whether the aggregate value of income from each 
source, or in the case of a loan, the highest amount owed to each source, was $1,000 or less, 
greater than $1,000, greater than $10,000, or greater than $100,000; 
    3. A description of the consideration, if any, for which the 
income was received; 
    4. In the case of a gift, the name, address and business activity 
of the donor and any intermediary through which the gift was made; a description of the gift; 
the amount or value of the gift; and the date on which the gift was received; 
    5. In the case of a loan, the annual interest rate and the security, 
if any, given for the loan and the term of the loan. 
 (C) Business Entity Income Disclosure. When income of a business entity, including 
income of a sole proprietorship, is required to be reported,6 the statement shall contain: 



 

37 
 

    1. The name, address, and a general description of the business 
activity of the business entity; 
    2. The name of every person from whom the business entity 
received payments if the filer's pro rata share of gross receipts from such person was equal to 
or greater than $10,000. 
 (D) Business Position Disclosure. When business positions are required to be reported, 
a designated employee shall list the name and address of each business entity in which he or 
she is a director, officer, partner, trustee, employee, or in which he or she holds any position 
of management, a description of the business activity in which the business entity is engaged, 
and the designated employee's position with the business entity. 
 (E) Acquisition or Disposal During Reporting Period. In the case of an annual or 
leaving office statement, if an investment or an interest in real property was partially or wholly 
acquired or disposed of during the period covered by the statement, the statement shall contain 
the date of acquisition or disposal. 
  (8) Section 8. Prohibition on Receipt of Honoraria. 
 (A) No member of a state board or commission, and no designated employee of a state 
or local government agency, shall accept any honorarium from any source, if the member or 
employee would be required to report the receipt of income or gifts from that source on his or 
her statement of economic interests. 
 (B) This section shall not apply to any part-time member of the governing board of any 
public institution of higher education, unless the member is also an elected official. 
 (C) Subdivisions (a), (b), and (c) of Section 89501 shall apply to the prohibitions in this 
section. 
 (D) This section shall not limit or prohibit payments, advances, or reimbursements for 
travel and related lodging and subsistence authorized by Section 89506. 
  (8.1) Section 8.1. Prohibition on Receipt of Gifts in Excess of $470. 
 (A) No member of a state board or commission, and no designated employee of a state 
or local government agency, shall accept gifts with a total value of more than $470 in a calendar 
year from any single source, if the member or employee would be required to report the receipt 
of income or gifts from that source on his or her statement of economic interests. 
 (B) This section shall not apply to any part-time member of the governing board of any 
public institution of higher education, unless the member is also an elected official. 
 (C) Subdivisions (e), (f), and (g) of Section 89503 shall apply to the prohibitions in this 
section. 
  (8.2) Section 8.2. Loans to Public Officials. 
 (A) No elected officer of a state or local government agency shall, from the date of his 
or her election to office through the date that he or she vacates office, receive a personal loan 
from any officer, employee, member, or consultant of the state or local government agency in 
which the elected officer holds office or over which the elected officer's agency has direction 
and control. 
 (B) No public official who is exempt from the state civil service system pursuant to 
subdivisions (c), (d), (e), (f), and (g) of Section 4 of Article VII of the Constitution shall, while 
he or she holds office, receive a personal loan from any officer, employee, member, or 
consultant of the state or local government agency in which the public official holds office or 
over which the public official's agency has direction and control. This subdivision shall not 
apply to loans made to a public official whose duties are solely secretarial, clerical, or manual. 
 (C) No elected officer of a state or local government agency shall, from the date of his 
or her election to office through the date that he or she vacates office, receive a personal loan 
from any person who has a contract with the state or local government agency to which that 
elected officer has been elected or over which that elected officer's agency has direction and 



 

38 
 

control. This subdivision shall not apply to loans made by banks or other financial institutions 
or to any indebtedness created as part of a retail installment or credit card transaction, if the 
loan is made or the indebtedness created in the lender's regular course of business on terms 
available to members of the public without regard to the elected officer's official status. 
 (D) No public official who is exempt from the state civil service system pursuant to 
subdivisions (c), (d), (e), (f), and (g) of Section 4 of Article VII of the Constitution shall, while 
he or she holds office, receive a personal loan from any person who has a contract with the 
state or local government agency to which that elected officer has been elected or over which 
that elected officer's agency has direction and control. This subdivision shall not apply to loans 
made by banks or other financial institutions or to any indebtedness created as part of a retail 
installment or credit card transaction, if the loan is made or the indebtedness created in the 
lender's regular course of business on terms available to members of the public without regard 
to the elected officer's official status. This subdivision shall not apply to loans made to a public 
official whose duties are solely secretarial, clerical, or manual. 
 (E) This section shall not apply to the following: 
    1. Loans made to the campaign committee of an elected officer 
or candidate for elective office. 
    2. Loans made by a public official's spouse, child, parent, 
grandparent, grandchild, brother, sister, parent-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, nephew, 
niece, aunt, uncle, or first cousin, or the spouse of any such persons, provided that the person 
making the loan is not acting as an agent or intermediary for any person not otherwise 
exempted under this section. 
    3. Loans from a person which, in the aggregate, do not exceed 
$500 at any given time. 
    4. Loans made, or offered in writing, before January 1, 1998. 
  (8.3) Section 8.3. Loan Terms. 
 (A) Except as set forth in subdivision (B), no elected officer of a state or local 
government agency shall, from the date of his or her election to office through the date he or 
she vacates office, receive a personal loan of $500 or more, except when the loan is in writing 
and clearly states the terms of the loan, including the parties to the loan agreement, date of the 
loan, amount of the loan, term of the loan, date or dates when payments shall be due on the 
loan and the amount of the payments, and the rate of interest paid on the loan. 
 (B) This section shall not apply to the following types of loans: 
    1. Loans made to the campaign committee of the elected officer. 
    2. Loans made to the elected officer by his or her spouse, child, 
parent, grandparent, grandchild, brother, sister, parent-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, 
nephew, niece, aunt, uncle, or first cousin, or the spouse of any such person, provided that the 
person making the loan is not acting as an agent or intermediary for any person not otherwise 
exempted under this section. 
    3. Loans made, or offered in writing, before January 1, 1998. 
 (C) Nothing in this section shall exempt any person from any other provision of Title 
9 of the Government Code. 
  (8.4) Section 8.4. Personal Loans. 
 (A) Except as set forth in subdivision (B), a personal loan received by any designated 
employee shall become a gift to the designated employee for the purposes of this section in the 
following circumstances: 
    1. If the loan has a defined date or dates for repayment, when the 
statute of limitations for filing an action for default has expired. 
    2. If the loan has no defined date or dates for repayment, when 
one year has elapsed from the later of the following: 



 

39 
 

    a. The date the loan was made. 
    b. The date the last payment of $100 or more was made on the 
loan. 
    c. The date upon which the debtor has made payments on the 
loan aggregating to less than $250 during the previous 12 months. 
 (B) This section shall not apply to the following types of loans: 
    1. A loan made to the campaign committee of an elected officer 
or a candidate for elective office. 
    2. A loan that would otherwise not be a gift as defined in this 
title. 
    3. A loan that would otherwise be a gift as set forth under 
subdivision (A), but on which the creditor has taken reasonable action to collect the balance 
due. 
    4. A loan that would otherwise be a gift as set forth under 
subdivision (A), but on which the creditor, based on reasonable business considerations, has 
not undertaken collection action. Except in a criminal action, a creditor who claims that a loan 
is not a gift on the basis of this paragraph has the burden of proving that the decision for not 
taking collection action was based on reasonable business considerations. 
    5. A loan made to a debtor who has filed for bankruptcy and the 
loan is ultimately discharged in bankruptcy. 
 (C) Nothing in this section shall exempt any person from any other provisions of Title 
9 of the Government Code. 
  (9) Section 9. Disqualification.  No designated employee shall make, participate 
in making, or in any way attempt to use his or her official position to influence the making of 
any governmental decision which he or she knows or has reason to know will have a reasonably 
foreseeable material financial effect, distinguishable from its effect on the public generally, on 
the official or a member of his or her immediate family or on: 
 (A) Any business entity in which the designated employee has a direct or indirect 
investment worth $2,000 or more; 
 (B) Any real property in which the designated employee has a direct or indirect interest 
worth $2,000 or more; 
 (C) Any source of income, other than gifts and other than loans by a commercial 
lending institution in the regular course of business on terms available to the public without 
regard to official status, aggregating $500 or more in value provided to, received by or 
promised to the designated employee within 12 months prior to the time when the decision is 
made; 
 (D) Any business entity in which the designated employee is a director, officer, partner, 
trustee, employee, or holds any position of management; or 
 (E) Any donor of, or any intermediary or agent for a donor of, a gift or gifts aggregating 
$470 or more provided to, received by, or promised to the designated employee within 12 
months prior to the time when the decision is made. 
  (9.3) Section 9.3. Legally Required Participation.  No designated employee 
shall be prevented from making or participating in the making of any decision to the extent his 
or her participation is legally required for the decision to be made. The fact that the vote of a 
designated employee who is on a voting body is needed to break a tie does not make his or her 
participation legally required for purposes of this section. 
  (9.5) Section 9.5. Disqualification of State Officers and Employees.  In addition 
to the general disqualification provisions of section 9, no state administrative official shall 
make, participate in making, or use his or her official position to influence any governmental 
decision directly relating to any contract where the state administrative official knows or has 



 

40 
 

reason to know that any party to the contract is a person with whom the state administrative 
official, or any member of his or her immediate family has, within 12 months prior to the time 
when the official action is to be taken: 
 (A) Engaged in a business transaction or transactions on terms not available to members 
of the public, regarding any investment or interest in real property; or 
 (B) Engaged in a business transaction or transactions on terms not available to members 
of the public regarding the rendering of goods or services totaling in value $1,000 or more. 
 (10) Section 10. Disclosure of Disqualifying Interest.  When a designated employee 
determines that he or she should not make a governmental decision because he or she has a 
disqualifying interest in it, the determination not to act may be accompanied by disclosure of 
the disqualifying interest. 
 (11) Section 11. Assistance of the Commission and Counsel.  Any designated employee 
who is unsure of his or her duties under this code may request assistance from the Fair Political 
Practices Commission pursuant to Section 83114 and Regulations 18329 and 18329.5 or from 
the attorney for his or her agency, provided that nothing in this section requires the attorney 
for the agency to issue any formal or informal opinion. 
 (12) Section 12. Violations.  This code has the force and effect of law. Designated 
employees violating any provision of this code are subject to the administrative, criminal and 
civil sanctions provided in the Political Reform Act, Sections 81000-91014. In addition, a 
decision in relation to which a violation of the disqualification provisions of this code or of 
Section 87100 or 87450 has occurred may be set aside as void pursuant to Section 91003. 
_______________ 
1 Designated employees who are required to file statements of economic interests under any 
other agency's conflict of interest code, or under article 2 for a different jurisdiction, may 
expand their statement of economic interests to cover reportable interests in both jurisdictions, 
and file copies of this expanded statement with both entities in lieu of filing separate and 
distinct statements, provided that each copy of such expanded statement filed in place of an 
original is signed and verified by the designated employee as if it were an original. See Section 
81004. 
2 See Section 81010 and Regulation 18115 for the duties of filing officers and persons in 
agencies who make and retain copies of statements and forward the originals to the filing 
officer. 
3 For the purpose of disclosure only (not disqualification), an interest in real property does not 
include the principal residence of the filer. 
4 Investments and interests in real property which have a fair market value of less than $2,000 
are not investments and interests in real property within the meaning of the Political Reform 
Act. However, investments or interests in real property of an individual include those held by 
the individual's spouse and dependent children as well as a pro rata share of any investment or 
interest in real property of any business entity or trust in which the individual, spouse and 
dependent children own, in the aggregate, a direct, indirect or beneficial interest of 10 percent 
or greater. 
5 A designated employee's income includes his or her community property interest in the income of his 
or her spouse but does not include salary or reimbursement for expenses received from a state, local or 
federal government agency. 
6 Income of a business entity is reportable if the direct, indirect or beneficial interest of the filer and 
the filer's spouse in the business entity aggregates a 10 percent or greater interest. In addition, the 
disclosure of persons who are clients or customers of a business entity is required only if the clients or 
customers are within one of the disclosure categories of the filer. 
 
Section 20.02.  Statement of Economic Interest. Board members and staff shall file 
statements of economic interests with the Clerk of the County of San Luis Obispo. 







 

43 
 

San Simeon Community Services District  
Conflict of Interest Code 

 

EXHIBIT "B" 

DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES 

Category Number: 

 
Category 1: All persons in this disclosure category shall disclose all interests in real property 
located in the District or within two miles of the District's boundaries. This disclosure is not 
applicable to the person's principal residence or real property interests with a fair market 
value of less than $2,000. 
Category 2: All persons in this disclosure category shall disclose all investments in business 
entities and business positions in business entities that have an interest in real property in the 
District, or that have done business with the District during the year prior to the date of the 
person's disclosure statement, or that are likely to do business with District during the year 
subsequent to the date of the person's disclosure statement. This disclosure category is not 
applicable to investments with a fair market value of less than $2,000. 
Category 3: All persons in this disclosure category shall disclose all sources of personal and 
business entity income from entities that provide services, materials, machinery equipment, 
or supplies of the type utilized by the District or that are located within the District, including 
gifts, loans and travel payments. This disclosure category is not applicable to income 
received from the District. 
For purposes of these categories, investment or interest means any investment or interest 
owned by the spouse, registered partner or dependent child of a public official, by an agent 
on behalf of a public official, or by a business entity or trust in which the official, the 
official’s agents, spouse, registered partner and dependent children own directly, indirectly, 
or beneficially a 10-percent interest or greater. 
 Consultants. "Consultant" means an individual who, pursuant to a contract with the 
District, either: (A) Makes a governmental decision whether to (1) approve a rate, rule, or 
regulation; (2) adopt or enforce a law; (3) issue, deny, suspend, or revoke any permit, license, 
application, certificate, approval, order, or similar authorization or entitlement; (4) authorize 
the District to enter into, modify, or renew a contract provided it is the type of contract that 
requires District approval; (5) grant District approval to a contract that requires District 
approval and to which the District is a party, or to the specifications for such a contract; (6) 
grant District approval to a plan, design, report, study, or similar item; or (7) adopt or grant 
District approval of policies, standards, or guidelines for the agency, or for any subdivision 
thereof; or (8) Serves in a staff capacity with the District and in that capacity participates in 
making a governmental decision as defined in California Code of Regulations, title 2, section 
18702.2 or performs the same or substantially all the same duties for the District that would 
otherwise be performed by an individual holding a position specified in the District's conflict 
of interest code. (California Code of Regulations, title 2, section 18700.3) 
 “Consultants” are included in the list of designated positions and must disclose 
interests and investments in accordance with the broadest disclosure category in the District’s 
conflict of interest code, subject to the following limitation:  The General Manager may 
determine in writing that a particular consultant, although a “consultant” and “designated 
position,” nevertheless is hired or retained to perform a range of duties that is limited in 
scope and therefore is not required to fully comply with the disclosure requirements 



 

44 
 

described in this section.  The General Manager’s written determination shall include a 
description of the consultant’s duties, and, based on that description, a statement of the extent 
of disclosure requirements.  The written determination is a public record and shall be retained 
for public inspection in the same manner and location as the District’s conflict of interest 
code. 
  



 

45 
 

SECTION 21.00 Social Media Policy 
 
21.01 Purpose. The District respects the right of the Board of Directors and District personnel 
(collectively, “Staff Members”) to use social media as a medium of self-expression. However, 
use of social media also presents certain risks and carries with it certain responsibilities. To 
assist Staff Members in making responsible decisions about their use of social media, the 
District has established these guidelines for appropriate use of social media. All Staff Members 
need to follow these requirements when posting on social media. 

 
21.02 Guidelines.   

 
1. Social Media.  Social media includes all means of communicating or posting 

information or content of any sort on the Internet, including to a Staff Member’s own 
or someone else’s web log or blog, journal or diary, personal web site, social 
networking or affinity web site, web bulletin board or a chat room, whether or not 
associated or affiliated with the District, as well as any other form of electronic 
communication.  
 

2. Follow District Rules. Staff Members should carefully read these guidelines and the 
District’s overall Board policies, including (but not limited to) the Sections on Board 
Conduct, Conflict of Interest Policy, Anti-Discrimination, and Anti-Harassment Policy, 
and ensure their postings are consistent with these policies.  Inappropriate postings that 
may include discriminatory remarks, harassment, threats of violence, or similar 
inappropriate or unlawful conduct may subject Staff Members to disciplinary action up 
to and including termination.   
 

3. District Business.  District emails and computers are limited to conducting District 
business and are not to be used for personal social media. Staff Members must never 
use their District e-mail account or password in conjunction with a social media site. 
All data contained in the District’s computer network systems is owned by and is the 
intellectual property of the District. Staff Members should not have an expectation of 
privacy with respect to information or communications that they post using the 
District’s computers or networks. The District has the right to monitor all activity on 
its equipment and systems. 
 

4. Disclosures. Social media should remain personal in nature and be used to share 
personal opinions or non-District related information.   Staff members should neither 
claim nor imply that the Staff Member is speaking on behalf of the District. (Please see 
section 3.04) When appropriate, Staff Members should use a disclaimer to indicate the 
views expressed are the Staff Member’s own, such as: “The postings on this site are 
my own and don’t reflect or represent the opinions of the San Simeon Community 
Services District.” 
 

5. Exercise Best Judgment and Discretion.   
i. Staff Members should be fair and courteous to other Staff Members, District 

clients, members of the public, and individuals working on behalf of the 
District.   

ii. Work-related issues should be resolved by speaking directly (not via social 
media) to the individual or by utilizing the District’s Complaints/Claims 
Procedures or, for concerns involving suspected harassment, discrimination, or 



 

46 
 

retaliation, by using the complaint reporting procedure described in the Anti-
Discrimination and Anti-Harassment Policy.   

iii. Staff Members should avoid using statements, photographs, video, or audio that 
reasonably could be viewed as obscene or contributing to a hostile work 
environment on the basis of race, religious creed, color, national origin, 
ancestry, physical or mental disability, medical condition, genetic information, 
marital status, sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, age, sexual 
orientation, or any other status protected by law or District policy.   
 

6. Be Honest and Accurate. Strive for accuracy and full disclosure in any social media 
post.  Include a link to your sources of information.  If you make a mistake, correct the 
information or retract it promptly. Remember the Internet archives almost everything; 
even deleted postings can be searched.  Never post any information or rumors that you 
know to be false or inaccurate about the District, co-workers, District clients, or 
individuals working on behalf of the District.   
 

7. Maintain Confidential Information. Staff Members must not disclose or discuss the 
confidential, sensitive, and/or proprietary information of the District and/or its officials, 
officers, other Staff Members, agents, customers, or volunteers. For example, do not 
disclose another individual’s social security number, medical, or financial information.  
 

8. Do Not Promote the District Anonymously.  Staff Members should not create a link 
from their blog, website, or other social networking site to the District’s website. In 
addition, they must use their best judgment and exercise discretion when linking to 
people on social media sites. Other Staff Members and members of the public may see 
Staff Member connections and make judgments about them or their work. 

 
9. Additional Considerations.  

i. Staff Members are free to express themselves as private citizens on social media 
to the degree that such speech does not impair or impede the performance of 
District duties, impair discipline and harmony among Staff Members, or 
negatively affect the public perception of the District.    

ii. The same principles and guidelines found in the District’s policies apply to Staff 
Members’ activities online. Before creating online content, Staff Members should 
consider some of the risks and rewards that are involved. Staff Member conduct 
that adversely affects job performance, the performance of fellow Staff Members, 
or otherwise adversely affects members of the public served by the District, 
suppliers, people who work on behalf of the District, or the District’s legitimate 
business interests may result in disciplinary action up to and including 
termination. 

iii. Staff Members should not display District logos or similar identifying items on 
personal webpages.  

 

SECTION 22.00 Applying for Grants Policy 
 
22.01 Purpose.  Grants are contracts or agreements whereby the District receives funding 
from an outside agency to subsidize a District project or program and for which the District 
has fiduciary oversight responsibility. 
 



 

47 
 

It shall be the policy of the District to identify and apply for grants that provide additional 
financial resources to the District to assist in carrying out its projects and programs. This Policy 
has been adopted by the Board of Directors to clarify responsibility and authority for applying 
for grants and to provide that all grants awarded to the District have been thoroughly 
researched, are financially feasible for the District, and do not create unforeseen financial or 
other burdens. 
 
22.02 Policy.  When submitting requests for grant funding, it shall be the policy of the District 
to solicit funds for projects or programs that are consistent with the goals of the District and to 
make sure that the nature of the grant is such that it can be administered in an efficient manner. 
Accordingly, the General Manager or said designee, has responsibility for applying for external 
funding for projects and programs subject to the provisions of this policy. 
 
Prior to application submission, all grant applications must be reviewed by the General 
Manager who shall provide to the Board a report and recommendation regarding: 
 
1. consistency with overall program goals of the District, 
2. local match requirements and/or other budget impacts, 
3. staff/personnel requirements to implement objectives of the grant, and 
4. identification of responsible staff for program and fiscal monitoring. 
 
In the event that timing constraints prevent staff from obtaining Board Approval of a grant 
application submittal prior to the application being submitted, staff shall provide the Board 
with notice and a status update within two business days. 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
5. A. Business Items 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



     SSCSD BOARD MEETING STAFF REPORT  
 

 BUSINESS ACTION ITEM STAFF REPORT  

Item 5.A. Review of authorization of powers to the General Manager 
awarded under Resolution 20-419.  

 
 
Summary: 
 
On April 22, 2020, District Resolution 20-419 was adopted by the Board. A copy of this 
resolution is included with this staff report. Within this resolution item number six (6) 
requires that the authority vested in the General Manager by this resolution will be 
reviewed during each regularly scheduled Board meeting.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Enc: Resolution 20-419 

 









 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 











 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5. B. Business Items 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



     SSCSD BOARD MEETING STAFF REPORT  
 

 
BUSINESS ACTION ITEM STAFF REPORT  

Item 5.B. Adoption of Resolution 20-424 approving the Fiscal Year 
Budget for 2020/2021.  
 
There have been no changes to the budget since it was presented to the Board at the 
July meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enc: Resolution 20-424  
        Copy of Budget 
 



 

 Resolution 20-424  

RESOLUTION NO. 20-424 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE 
SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

ADOPTING THE 2020-2021 FISCAL BUDGET 
 
WHEREAS, the District is required, pursuant to Government Code Section 61110, to designate 
a Fiscal Budget for its expenditures and revenues; and 

WHEREAS, the Fiscal Budget must conform to generally accepted accounting and budgeting 
procedures for special districts; and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to make known its planned activities and associated costs for the 
2020-2021 fiscal year; and 

WHEREAS, the District held a noticed, public hearing on August 12, 2020 to present and receive 
public comment on the proposed Fiscal Budget and has duly considered all public comment. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED, AND ORDERED by the Board of 
Directors, San Simeon Community Services District, San Luis Obispo County, California, as 
follows: 

1. That the proposed 2020-2021 Fiscal Budget for San Simeon Community Services District, 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” be adopted. 

2. That the adopted Fiscal Budget be administered as established by the District’s policies 
and procedures. 

Upon motion of Chairperson __________________, seconded by Director __________________ 
and on the following roll call vote to wit: 
 
Chairperson Kellas:               Vice-Chairperson Russell:                 Director Carson:  
Director de la Rosa:   Director Maurer:  
 
 

The foregoing Resolution is hereby adopted this12th day of August, 2020. 
 
    

 
       ______________________________                     

Gwen Kellas 
Chairperson of the Board of Directors 

ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Charles Grace 
General Manager/Secretary SSCSD  





 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

5.C. Business Items 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SSCSD BOARD MEETING STAFF REPORT  

BUSINESS ACTION ITEM STAFF REPORT 

Item 5.C. Discussion related to the LAFCO solid waste 
authority powers related to District Resolution 20-420.  

Summary: 

The San Simeon Community Services District (SSCSD) Board of Directors has 
previously discussed moving forward with a formal request to the County of San Luis 
Obispo’s Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) to activate its solid waste 
power. This power would provide the SSCSD with the authority to provide for the 
collection and disposal of garbage and refuse matter directly with Mission Country 
Disposal, the franchisee. Solid waste services for the community of San Simeon are 
currently provided by San Luis Obispo County through a franchise agreement with 
Mission Country Disposal. 

Attached to this staff report is the LAFCO application packet which includes the 
following components: 

1) Draft LAFCO Resolution – The resolution is required to be adopted by the
SSCSD Board at a noticed public hearing.

2) Exhibit A – Background/Situation – Provides information about the SSCSD
and discusses the advantages to the District to manage solid waste services
directly with the franchisee.

3) Exhibit B – Plan for Services – Describes how services would be provided with
the authority for solid waste being transferred to the District.

4) Exhibit C – SSCSD Map – Shows the boundaries of the District and the affected
parcels.

Background: 

The SSCSD currently provides a variety of services directly to the community including 
road maintenance, water, sewer, weed abatement, and street lighting. The District went 
through a similar LAFCO process to the current proposal to activate its solid waste 
power back in 2017 to activate weed abatement power.   



August 12, 2020 SSCSD Board Meeting 
Item 5.C.– LAFCO Solid Waste Authority 

Page 2 

SSCSD BOARD MEETING STAFF REPORT  

Any district wishing to activate a latent power is required to receive LAFCO approval 
prior to providing the service. The process for the assumption of powers and review 
process is governed by State law known as the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act. 

The proposed request for SSCSD to establish its own solid waste authority is not 
unique. Through the LAFCO process, ten other community services districts in San Luis 
Obispo County have established solid waste authority for their communities over the 
years. The San Miguel CSD, Heritage Ranch CSD, Templeton CSD, and Ground 
Squirrel Hollow CSD are all North County CSDs that have acquired solid waste 
authority and operate successful solid waste programs. The last community services 
district to receive LAFCO approval for solid waste powers was the Ground Squirrel 
Hollow CSD in 2014. 

SSCSD Benefits & Fiscal Analysis: 

The primary advantage behind this proposal 
is a more “local” control of a local public 
service. Currently the County receives 
franchise fees, even though SSCSD staff 
members often field community complaints 
and get involved with oversight of trash 
services (see photo as an example of a 
common issue with disposal of household 
items).  

San Luis Garbage, the local parent company for Mission Country Disposal, had a rate 
increase that took effect about a year ago in 2019. As part of this 2019, rate increase, 
there are periodic minor rate changes based on the Consumer Price Index (CPI). Based 
on a communication with Dane Johnson of Waste Connections, which is the national 
company that includes the local subsidiaries San Luis Garbage and Mission Country 
Disposal, the projected franchise fee that SSCSD would collect is about $18,000 per 
year pre COVID service levels.  There are on-going staff and legal costs to administer 
and oversee the District’s solid waste program which are anticipated to fluctuate, but are 
estimated to average about a $1,000 per year.   

There is a direct connection between road improvements and maintenance services 
and community solid waste services. Garbage trucks are the heaviest shortest 
wheelbase vehicles on the roads. Maintenance and improvements on roads to 
accommodate these vehicles is a priority for the SSCSD. The SSCSD historically has 
communicated with Mission Country Disposal and resolved to maintain roads that are 
accessible to garbage trucks in all weather conditions. Additionally, all community solid 
waste services including diversion are best met by local control of the franchise funds to 



August 12, 2020 SSCSD Board Meeting 
Item 5.C. – LAFCO Solid Waste Authority 

Page 3 

SSCSD BOARD MEETING STAFF REPORT  

support the programs. Coordination between road projects and solid waste services can 
be done more efficiently if both community services are controlled by the same public 
agency. 

Proposition 218 is a State law that limits the use of revenues derived from services fees 
as follows: 

1) Revenues derived from the fee must not be used for any purpose other than that
for which the fee is imposed.

2) The fee may not be imposed for general governmental services, such as police,
fire, ambulance, etc.

Based on case law related to fees and the limitations of Proposition 218, SSCSD Legal 
counsel has determined that solid waste revenues are valid for repairing and 
maintaining streets. As discussed in the prior paragraph, there is a direct relationship 
between wear and tear on the pavement of streets associated with regular trash service 
given their weight and the frequency of service. Therefore, there is the appropriate 
nexus for the use of solid waste revenue to augment street maintenance services, and 
with pending LAFCO approval of the solid waste power, both solid waste and street 
maintenance would be powers of the SSCSD. 

Recommendation: 

Adopt the attached resolution and authorize SSCSD staff to move forward with an 
application to LAFCO to activate its latent power for solid waste services. 

Attachments: 

1) Draft LAFCO Resolution
2) Exhibit A – Background/Situation
3) Exhibit B – Plan for Services
4) Exhibit C – SSCSD Map



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



RESOLUTION 20-425 Page 1of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-425 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

FOR APPLICATION TO THE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION TO 
ESTABLISH SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY FOR THE  

SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, the San Simeon Community Services District ("District") is a community 
services district duly formed under Government Code Section 61000 et seq. to provide 
community services within the District's service area, including road maintenance, water, 
sewer, weed abatement, and street lighting; and 

WHEREAS, in order to establish the authority to provide for solid waste management 
authority, it is necessary, in accordance with Government Code Sections 56824.10 et. 
seq. to submit a resolution of Application to be filed with the Executive Officer of the 
Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) for the purpose of scheduling a hearing 
by the LAFCO Commission for the approval of the exercise of said authority; and 

WHEREAS, a noticed public hearing was held on August 12, 2020 by the District, and at that 
meeting there was the opportunity for public comment regarding this Resolution. 

WHEREAS, the District is not in the sphere of influence of another city or special district 
that currently provides waste management services; and 

WHEREAS, the District further finds that this Resolution was adopted at a duly noticed 
public hearing on August 12, 2020 pursuant to Government Code Section 56824.12(c). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the San Simeon Community Services District 
Board of Directors as follows: 

1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein and
constitute findings in support of this Resolution.

2. The provision of waste management authority will result in assurance of the public's
safety and welfare.

3. Exhibit B, the Plan for Services, attached hereto and incorporated herein by
reference, is approved for filing with the Executive Officer of the San Luis Obispo
LAFCO.



4. The Executive Officer of LAFCO is requested to set the matter for a public hearing
by the Commission pursuant to Government Code Section 56824.14 and the rules
and regulations of LAFCO.

5. LAFCO is requested to approve the proposal of the San Simeon Community
Services District to provide its residents with waste management services
pursuant to Government Code Section 61100(t).

Upon motion of Director   , seconded by Director ,

and on the following roll call vote to wit: 

AYES: NOES:

ABSTAI N: ABSENT: 

The foregoing Resolution is hereby adopted this 12th day of August 2020. 

Gwen Kellas, Chairperson 
Board of Directors 

ATTEST: 

  Charles Grace    
  Secretary/General Manager 

Attachment: 

   Exhibit "A" - SSCSD Background and Project Description 

Exhibit "B" - Plan for Services is approved for filing with the Executive Officer of the San 
Luis Obispo LAFCO 

Exhibit “C” – Map of parcels to be included as part of this service 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



Exhibit A – Background/Situation 

Background 
The San Simeon Community Services District (SSCSD) is located on Highway One 
in north San Luis Obispo County, California. The San Simeon Acres Service District 
was formed pursuant to an election and Resolution of the San Luis Obispo County 
Board of Supervisors on May 8, 1961. The name of the District was later changed to 
San Simeon Community Services District. 
The SSCSD is organized under California Government Code Section 61000 et al, 
Community Service District law. The SSCSD is currently empowered by its authorizing 
statutes and pursuant Code Section 61100 to provide the following services: road 
maintenance, water, sewer, weed abatement, and street lighting. 

Five members living within the boundaries of the SSCSD serve as elected board 
members. The regular meetings of the Board are on the second Wednesday of the 
month at the Cavalier Banquet Room at 250 San Simeon Ave., San Simeon. The 
Board employs Grace Environmental Services to run the day to day operations and 
maintenance of the SSCSD. These includes a general manager, office manager, plant 
superintendent, and water operator. 

Funding 

The SSCSD is funded through water and wastewater revenues and property tax 
revenue from San Luis Obispo County.  

The fiscal year ending 2019 audit indicates the SSCSD had a cash balance of 
$1,001,257.  The SSCSD uses revenue from General Fund balance for minor road 
repairs throughout the year and other projects. 

Situation – Solid Waste Power 
The SSCSD Board desires to activate its latent power to provide solid waste services 
to the residents located within their current boundaries pursuant to California 
Government Code Section 6100(c): 
• Collect, transfer, and dispose of solid waste, and provide solid waste handling

services, including, but not limited to, source reduction, recycling, and
composting activities, pursuant to Division 30 (commencing with Section 40000),
and consistent with Section
41821.2 of the Public Resources Code.

Solid waste services for the community of San Simeon are currently provided by San 
Luis Obispo County through a franchise agreement with Mission Country Disposal. 
The agreement provides for curbside service including weekly pickup of refuse and 
recycling. Commercial bin service is also available. 



Exhibit A – Background/Situation 
Page 2 

 Prior Transfer of Solid Waste Authority to CSDs
Through the LAFCO process ten community services districts in San Luis
Obispo County have established solid waste authority for their
communities over the years. The San Miguel CSD, Heritage Ranch CSD,
Templeton CSD, and Ground Squirrel Hollow CSD are all North County
CSDs that have acquired solid waste authority and operate successful solid
waste programs. The last community services district to receive LAFCO
approval for solid waste powers was the Ground Squirrel Hollow CSD in
2014.

 Advantages to San Simeon Residents
The primary advantage behind this proposal is local control of a local public
service. The SSCSD Board believes there is a direct connection between
road improvements and maintenance services and community solid waste
services. Garbage trucks are the heaviest shortest wheelbase vehicles on
the roads. Maintenance and improvements on roads to accommodate
these vehicles is a priority for the SSCSD. The SSCSD historically has
communicated with Mission Country Disposal and resolved to maintain roads
that are accessible to garbage trucks in all weather conditions. Additionally,
all community solid waste services including diversion are best met by local
control of the franchise funds to support the programs. Coordination
between road projects and solid waste services can be done more efficiently
if both community services are controlled by the same public agency.

Public information on the requirements of a community solid waste program
and the opportunity for public testimony was provided at various Board
meetings. The topic of activating solid waste power for the community was
discussed at Board of Directors meetings on the following dates:

o November 13, 2019
o February 12, 2020
o March 11, 2020
o June 10, 2020 (public hearing)

 Integrated Waste Management Authority
The San Luis Obispo County Integrated Waste Management Authority is a
Joint Powers Authority (IWMA) formed in 1994 to plan and implement
regional solid waste and hazardous waste programs in the County. These
programs help its member jurisdictions to achieve the State requirement of
fifty percent (50%) diversion of solid waste away from landfills through
recycling, composting and source reduction.



Exhibit A – Background/Situation 
Page 3 

 
The County, all cities and all community services districts that provide solid 
waste services are member agencies of the IWMA. The SSCSD would join 
the IWMA upon its approval to implement solid waste services within its 
jurisdiction.  The SSCSD acknowledges the obligations of local agencies to 
comply with Section 40050 et seq of the Public Resources Code commonly 
known as the California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989. 
 



Exhibit B – Plan for Services 
 

1. Service Level. The same level of service is proposed for solid waste under a 
franchise agreement with the same hauler, Mission Country Disposal. Weekly 
diversion will be provided to all customers. No disruption in the current service 
level is proposed. 

 
2. Service Area. The current service boundaries of the SSCSD are proposed for 

solid waste service. A map of the current services area is attached as Exhibit C. 
 
3. Service Fees. There will be no increase in solid waste fees charged to 

residents resulting from the SSCSD activating its solid waste fees. The 
franchise hauler currently bills customer monthly for solid waste service and 
these fees includes a 10% franchise fee charged by the San Luis Obispo County. 
The SSCSD will impose the same 10% franchise fee. This franchise fee will 
be used to support solid waste programs within the community. 

 
4. Service Access. The solid waste hauler currently accesses all properties on 

roads maintained by the SSCSD. There are currently no major problems with 
access to any parcels. By activating its solid waste powers, the SSCSD will be 
better able to coordinate road work and improvement to any road conditions that 
may impact solid waste services in the future. 

 
5. Service Financing. Solid waste customer will fund the day-to-day services 

through a fee structure approved by the franchiser and billed by the franchisee 
(Mission Country Waste Disposal). The SSCSD maintains enough cash 
reserves to create and implement a new solid waste agreement with the 
hauler. Cash reserves are available to maintain solid waste services in the 
event the hauler default on the agreement and a performance bond will be 
required by the hauler to maintain solid waste services in the event of default. 

 
6. Service Management. The General Manger of the SSCSD serves to perform 

the administration and management of SSCSD utilities. The General Manager's 
serves with other utility providers in San Luis Obispo County, providing water 
and wastewater services. The General Manager has twelve years’  experience 
managing agreements including negotiating new agreements and complying 
with all state and local solid waste laws. The SSCSD legal counsel supports 
many local public agencies in the compliance with solid waste regulations and 
franchise agreements. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit B - Plan for Services 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 

7. Service Regulations. The SSCSD maintains a Code of Ordinances that 
provides for rules and regulation related to Board administration, purchasing, 
investments, and road improvements.  This Code will be amended to include 
solid waste services. 

 

Terms and Conditions for the Transfer of Solid Waste Authority to the SSCSD 
 

1. That the San Simeon Community Services District join the San Luis Obispo 
County Integrated Waste Management Authority. 

 
2. That the terms and conditions of the existing franchise agreement between 

San Luis Obispo County and the Mission Country Disposal be incorporated 
into the San Simeon Community Services District franchise agreement during 
the unexpired term of said franchise agreement. 

 
3. That the SSCSD adopt rules and regulations pertaining to solid waste service 

within their service area and incorporate such rules and regulations into its 
Code of Ordinances. 

 
4. Upon adoption of the rules and regulations referenced in condition 3 above, 

the San Simeon Community Services District shall be the authorized local 
agency to provide solid waste services within the San Simeon Community 
Services District's service boundaries. 

 
 



Exhibit C - SSCSD Map



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.D. Business Items 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 



     SSCSD BOARD MEETING STAFF REPORT  
 

 
BUSINESS ACTION ITEM STAFF REPORT  

Item 5.D. Discussion and review of resumes for the on call 
engineering services for the District Office.  
  
At the beginning of July staff sent a request for proposal (RFP) to fourteen (14) firms 
and posted notice inviting bids with the New Times and on the District Website. Two 
engineering firms responded to the District’s RFP; Taylor & Syfan and Parsons. Agency 
Qualifications have been included as part of the Board packet.  
 
Staff is looking for direction from the Board regarding this matter.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enc: Submittals from Taylor & Syfan and Parsons 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

















 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
































	BUSINESS ACTION ITEM  5.D. STAFF REPORT -8-12-2020 Green Sheet.pdf
	August 12, 2020 Meeting Packet.pdf
	August 12, 2012 Meeting Packet.pdf
	Binder3.pdf
	Binder2.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	front page of packet.pdf
	Agenda August 12, 2020 Board Meeting.pdf
	BP SEPARATORS.pdf
	Supt Rpt Narrative JUL20.pdf
	Supt Rpt Data 2020 3.pdf
	Supt Rpt Data 2020 2.pdf
	Supt Rpt Data 2020 4.pdf

	GM Report July  2020.pdf
	Financial Summary July 2020.pdf
	Balance Sheet 2020-07-31.pdf
	Sheet1

	San Sim Revenue graphs 2.pdf
	San Sim Revenue graphs.pdf
	July 8, 2020 Meeting Minutes Draft.pdf
	July 31, 2020 Closed Session Meeting Minutes.pdf
	2020-08 August Disbursements Journal.pdf
	Policies and Procedures Updated as of August 2020.pdf
	Resolution 20-424 Budget 2020-2021.pdf
	Draft Budget July 2020.pdf
	Draft LAFCO Resolution 20-425.pdf
	Exhibit A SSCSD Background  Project Description LAFCO Solid Waste Authority.pdf
	Exhibit B Plan for Services LAFCO Solid Waste.pdf
	Exhibit C SSCSD Map.pdf
	Reso 20-419 Declaration of Emergency Resolution related to COVID19.pdf
	Business Items August 2020.pdf


	Pages from Policies and Procedures Updated October 2019.pdf

	Board Packet Brown Act Check Sheet.pdf




